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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 16% Annual General Meeting of Members of Popular
; Autoworks Private Limited (“*Company”) will be held at 04:00 P.M, on Tuesday, 29t July
: 2025 at the Registered Office of the Company at Kuttukaran Centre, Mamangalam,
Ernakulam, Kerala-682025, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 315t March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Toappointa Director in place of Mr. lyothish Madhavanpiltai (DIN: 08770679), who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors and in this regard, to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution: '

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 (1) read with Section
102 (2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made thereunder the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby
authorized to fix the remuneration of M/s. R.G.N Price & Co., Chartered Accountant
(FRN 002785S), who have been appointed by the Members in the 15 Annual
General meeting as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014."
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SPECIAL BUSINESS

4, Appointment of Ms. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051164) as Director

To Appoint Ms. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051164) as Director of the Company and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: '

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), the rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in the force), Ms. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051164), who was appointed
as an Additional Director on 23 September, 2024 and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a
member proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. John K Paul (DIN: 00016513), Director of the
Company, be and is hereby authorized to file necessary returns/forms with the
Registrar of Companies, Ernakulam and to do all such acts, deeds and things that
may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect
to the aforesaid resolution.” .

5. Appointment of Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan (DIN: 08770690) as Director

To Appoint Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan (DIN: 08770690) as Director of the
Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), the rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in the force) , Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan (DIN: 08770690) who
was appointed as an Additional Director on 14t March, 2025 and in respect of
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from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. John K Paul (DIN: 00016513), Director of the
Company, be and is hereby authorized to file necessary returns/forms with the
Registrar of Companies, Ernakulam and to do all such acts, deeds and things that
may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect
to the aforesaid resolution.”

By the Order of the Board of Directors of
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Varun T.V.
Company Secretary
Place: Kochi (Membership No. A22044)
Date: 15.05.2025
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A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not
be a member of the Company. The proxies to be effective should be lodged with
the Company at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and
holding in aggregate not more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10 percent of total
share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint g single person
as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder. '

A corporate member intending to send its authorized representatives to attend
the meeting in terms of section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to
send to the Company a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing such
representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the meeting.

Members/proxies/ authorized representatives are requested to submit the
attendance slips duly filled in for attending the meeting. Members holding shares
in physical form are requested to write their folio number in the attendance slip
for attending the meeting.

During the period beginning 6 hours before the time fixed for the commencement
of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would
be entitled to inspect thé proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of
the Company. :

All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection at the registered
office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, between 11:00 a.m.
To1:00 p.m. up to the date of the general meeting and at the venue of the meeting
for the duration of the meeting.

Members are requested to kindly notify the Company of any changes in their
addresses/e-mail address so as to enable the Company to address future
communication to their correct addresses.
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8. Pursuant to section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 35 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended, Companies are permitted to
send official documents to their shareholders electronically.

9. Copies of the Mlemorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and other
relevant records in respect of the ordinary business are available at the
Registered Office of the Company and electronically for inspection of the
members during business hours between 10 am and 5 pm on all working days,

except Saturdays.
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By Order of the Board of Directors of
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

U el
Varun T.V.
; Company Secretary
Place: Kochi (Membership No. A22044)
Date: 15.05.2025
'
]
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No.Z&:

Ms, Malini Eapen, having DIN: 02051164, D/o Mr. Jacob Eapen, resident of Valiathottathil
House, Dewans Road, Kochi, Mg Road, Ernakulam - 682016, Kerala, India, was appointed
as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 23
September,2024. ' '

In terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, rutes made thereunder he
holds office up to the date of next Annual General Meeting. A notice has been received
from a member in accordance with section 160 of the Act, signifying his intention to
propose appointment of Ms. Malini Eapen as a Director. Her office is liable to retire by
rotation.

The Board of Directors have decided in its meeting dated 15% May, 2025 to recommend to
members to appoint Ms. Malini Eapen as a Director liable to retire by rotation.

Except Ms. Malini Eapen, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives are interested or concerned in respect of the resolution as set out vide item (4)
in the notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no.4 for approval by the
shareholders. '

There is no other information and facts to disclose that may enable members to
understand the meaning, scope and implications of the said item of business and to take
decision therean.
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ltem No.5:

Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan, having DIN: 08770690, 5/0 Mr. Anthappan Karedan,
resident of Karedan House, Mtra-5, Edappally P.0, Edapally 5.0, Ernakulam, Kerala, India-
6820245, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of
Directors with effect from 14% March,2025.

In terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder he
holds office up to the date of next Annual General Meeting. A notice has been received
from a member in accordance with section 160 of the Act, signifying his intention to
propose appointment of Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan as a Director. His office is liable
to retire by rotation.

The Board of Directors have decided in its meeting dated 15% May, 2025 to recommend to
members to appoint Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan as a Director liable to retire by
rotation.

Except Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
or their relatives are interested or concerned in respect of the resolution as set out vide
item (5) in the notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no.5 for approval by the
shareholders.

There is no other information and facts to disclose that may enable members to
understand the meaning, scope and implications of the said item of business and to take
decision thereon.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

£
Varun T.V.

Company Secretary
Place: Kochi (Membership No. A22044)

Date; 15.05.2025
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. ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting hall)

l, hereby record my presence at the 16% Annual General Meeting of Popular Autoworks
Private Limited held at 04:00 P.M, on Tuesday, 29% july 2025 at Kuttukaran Centre,
Mamangalam, Cochin-682025.

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE-SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING VENUE

Name
Address &
email ID

Folio no.

No. of shares
held '

| certify that | am the registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the
Company.

Signature of member / proxy




Form No. MIGT 11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 19(3) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name, address and email ID
of the shareholder(s)

Folio no. '
| / we, being the member(s) of _____________________ shares of the above named

Company, hereby appoint:
NN, e e _—

signature:_____ e

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 15t
Annual General Meeting of the Company held at 04:00 P.M, on Tuesday , 29% July 2025 at the
Registered Office at Kuttukaran Centre, Mamangalam, Cochin-682025 or / and at any
adjournment thereof, in respect of such Resolutions as indicated below:

SL. _ . Voted | Voted
No. | Resolutions ' for against

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of
1 | the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025

Re-appointment of Mr. Jyothish Madhavanpillai as a Director
2 liable to retire by rotation.

To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditor

4 | Appointment of Ms. Malini Eapen as Director

Appointment of Mr, Thomasanthappan Karedan as a
5 Director.

Signed this -~-==--=====mm day of ==e=emremmmm e 2025 Affix One
. Rupee

Signature of proxy holder(s) Signature of shareholder | Revenue
. Stamn




Notes: (1) The proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting. (2) A
proxy need not be a member of the Company. (3) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the
senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion
of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register of Members. (4) The Form of proxy confers authority to demand
or join in demanding a poll. (5) The submission by a member of this Form of proxy will not
preclude such member from attending in person and voting at the meeting.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Members,
Popular Autoworks Private Lirnited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Company's 16t Annual Report together
with the report of the statutory auditors and the audited financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025,

Global Economic Qverview

In the financial year 2024-25, the global economy witnessed modest growth, with
global light vehicle sales reaching 89 million units—a 2% increase over the
previous year, However, this growth was uneven across regions due to geopolitical
tensions, inflationary pressures, and trade uncertainties. The automotive sector
faced notable headwinds in the U.S. where the imposition of 25% tariffs on
imported vehicles initially boosted sales but was followed by a sharp decline. By
June, the annualised sales rate fell to 15 million units, down from 17.6 million in
April. In the UK, vehicle production in May dropped to its lowest Level since 19489,
largely driven by reduced exports to the U.S. after the tariff hike. :

Despite global volatility, the Indian economy remained resitient in FY 202425, with
real GDP growing at 6.5%—the highest among major economies. Growth was
supported by a rebound in consumption, improved net exports, and robust rural
and services sector activity. A favourable monsoon and government support
pushed agricultural growth to 4.6%, strengthening rural demand for two-wheelers
and entry-level cars. While industrial growth moderated to 4.3%, the PLI scheme
continued to drive investments in auto and EV components. Strong infrastructure
activity boosted demand. for commercial vehicles.

Amid these challenges, the electric vehicle (EV) segment remained a bright spot.
Global EV sales rose to 17.1 million units in 2024, registering a 25% year-over-year
increase. China maintained its leadership in this segment, contributing a
substantial share to global EV production and sales.

In FY 2024-25, the Passenger Vehicle segment saw domestic sales of 43,01,848
units, led by continued demand for Utility Vehicles. The segment benefited from
new model launches, improved availability, and strong con§uf'ﬁ ﬁ;‘_c‘elggst in
feature-rich vehicles. ' s SRR
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Business Operational Review

Key highlights of financial perfarmance of your Company for the financial year
2024-25 are provided below: )

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Standalone Performance

During the year under review, the revenue from operation were at
Rs.4706.22 million as against Rs. 3,629.77 million in the previous year,
recording an increase of 29.65%. The Profit Before Tax was recorded at Rs.
198.65 million in the current year as against Rs. 209.65 million in the
previous year, recording an increase of 5.24%.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY & HIGHUGHTS

(In INR millions, except earnings per share data)

Particulars FY 2025 FY 2024.|.
Net Revenue from Operations 4706.22 3,629.77
Other Income 26.41

29.82
Total Revenue 4732.63 3659.59
Employee benefit expenses 140.21 113.47
Finance costs 74.09 75.54
Depreciation and amortization 74.76 74.07
expenses '
All other expenses - 424493 3186.85
Total Expenses 4533.98 3449.94
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 198.65 209.65
Tax Expense:
Less: Current Tax 56.34 46.66
Less: MAT credit utilised , - 16.18
Deferred Tax ' -0.49 440
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 141.81 151.21
Earnings per equity share(in Rs)
Basic: 5.62
Diluted ; 5.62
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2. DEEMED PUBLIC COMPANY STATUS

As per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013 a company which
is a subsidiary of a company, not being a private company, shall be deemed to
be public company for the purposes of the Companies Act, 2013 even where
such subsidiary company continues to be a private company in its articles.

The holding Company Popular Vehicles and Services Limited has converted to a
Public Company on 10* July 2018. Being a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Popular
Vehicles and Services Limited, our Company became a Deemed Public Company
as per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, our Company has continued to be a Private Limited Company as per
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Certain provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 becomes applicable to the Company being a subsidiary of
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited which became a listed company from
19th March 2024,

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any
amount to the Reserves for the year under review.

4. DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the
relevant circumstances, has decided that it would be prudent, not to

recommend any Dividend for the year under review,

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the
year under review. '

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end-of:the
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financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
report.

CAPITAL & DEBT STRUCTURE .

During the financial year under report, there is no change in the Authorized and
Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company.

As on 315t March, 2025, the Authorised share capital of your Company stood at
Rs. 28,00,00,000/- consisting of 2,80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

As on 31t March, 2025, the paid-up equity share capital of your Company stood
at Rs. 25,11,17,800/- consisting of 2,51,11,780 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
fully paid up. :

8. CREDIT RATING

During the financial year under review, CARE Ratings have revised from CARE
BBB-/ Stable to Care BBB+/Stable rating for Long term Bank facilities and
CARE BB;stable/CARE A4+ rating has been revised to Care BBB+/Stable/Care
A2 for Long term/Short term Bank facilities as per the letter dated 12 August
2024,

| 9. UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the
IEPF Rules"), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred
by the Company to the IEPF; established by the Government of india, after
completion of seven'years. Further, according to the IEPF Rules, the shares on
which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven
consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of
the IEPF Authority.

However, your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for
a period of seven years in Unpaid Dividend Account. Therefore, there were no
funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection fund (IEPF) and no amount is lying in Unpaid Dividend account of
the Company.
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a) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the director Designation DIN
Mr.Naveen Philip Director 00018827
Mr.John K Paul Director 00016513
Mr.Francis K Paul Director 00018825
Mr.Jyothish Director 08770679

MadhavanPillai .

Ms. Malini Eapen Additional Director 02051164

Mr. Thomasanthappan | Additional Director 08770690

Karedan

None of the directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of

the Act.

i) Appointment
During the year under review, Your Company has appointed Ms. Malini
Eapen as additional director on 23" September, 2024 on the Board as it
has crossed the turnover limit of Rs. 300 crores attracting the
requirement of Women Director appointment under the extant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Additionally Mr. Thomasanthappan Karedan was also inducted to the
Board as additional director with effect from 14t March, 2025.

i) Resignation
Mr. M.A.Sajjan has tendered his resignation from the post of director
with effect from 14t March, 2025. :

iii) Retirement by rotation

BRANCHES
MARQLAND

Survey io. 8/2, Venkatala,
Airport Road, Near Bagaluru Cross,
Yelahanks, Bengaluru - 560 064.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013 and in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
lyothish Madhavanpillai (DIN 08770679) retires by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. BT
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b) Key Managerial Personnel

The Key managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows:

SL | Name of the KMP . Designation

No

1. Mr.Akshintala Suresh Kumar Chief Executive Officer

2. | Mr.John Verghese Group Chief Financial Officer
3 Mr.Varun T.V Company Secretary

There is no change in the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the year
under review.

¢) Independent directors

As per Rule 4 sub rule 2 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required to appoint Independent
Directors.

d) Declaration by Independent Directors

As per Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 the criteria of independence
laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the company.

- 11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & TS COMMITEES

a) Board meetings

During the financial year ended 315t March, 2025 the Board of Directors met 7
(Seven) times on:09% April,2024, 15% May,2024, 10% August,2024, 23
September,2024, 12 November, 2024, 06' February, 2025 and 14™" March,
2025, Requisite quorum was present in all the meetings and the intervening
gap between the meetings is within the period as prescribed under Section
173 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Finance and Authorisation Committee .

The Company also has a Finance and Authorisation Committee (sub-
committee). During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company has held 09
(Nine) meetings of the Finance and Authorisation Committee on 16™ April,

2024, 15% May, 2024, 06% June, 2024, 22™ July, 2024, 02" September, 2024,
S T
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25" November, 2024, 30% December, 2024, 20t February, 2025 and 19t
March, 2025. '

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

There are no directors, key managerial personnel or other employees who
are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amehdment
Rules,2016.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of clause(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 read with sub-section
(5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby state and
confirm that—
In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures; :

b) Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and

the Directors made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit of the company for that
year;

Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Annual Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going

e)

concern basis.

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.:

14, ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS .
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errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting record, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

15. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors has not reported to the
Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any instances of
fraud committed against the Company by its Officers or employees.

16. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the financial year under report the Company has not entered into or
invested in any new Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates. The details of
the Holding and Subsidiary Companies are given below:-

: Holding/ ,
sl Name of the Company Subsidiary/ Appl.lcable
No. A . Section
ssociate
| 1 Popular Vehicles and Services | Holding Company 2 (46)
|
2 NIL Subsidiary 2(87)
Company ‘

17. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under said Rules.

18. DEPOSITS
Your Company has not dccepted any public deposits and, as such no amount on
account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the

date of the Balance Sheet. Thus no particulars are reported as required under
Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

19, PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES

The details of Investments, Loans, Guarantees and Securities have been disclosed

B in the Financial Statements.
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20.PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions
contained in Section 188(1) of the Act read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Information on material transactions with
related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure-A in Form AOC-2 and the
same forms part of this report.

21, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company having net worth
of rupees five hundred crores or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crores
or more, or net profit of rupees five crores or more during the immediately
preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee and spent at least 2 percentage of the average net profits of the
Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years for CSR
activities. Hence the provisions of Section 135(1) is applicable to the company for
the year under review,

As part of our unwavering commitment to road safety, and in line with our CSR
Policy, our company has significantly amplified its efforts to positively impact
society through our ongoing CSR initiative, ‘SurakshitMarg’. The CSR initiative,
‘SurakshitMarg', was launched with an aim to foster culture of responsible road
behavior in school students. ‘SurakshitMarg' is an ongoing initiative that will
continue until 2028, The CSR obligation is carried out in collaboration with our
group companies through the implementing agency, the K. P. Paul Foundation. By
conducting a variety of impactful programs in schools, the initiative aims to
influence students, thereby indirectly fostering safer road habits within their
families and the wider community. The CSR initiative, ‘SurakshitMarg' is covered
under Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 as notified under General Circular
No. 21/2014. For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025, CSR obligation of the
Company aggregated to Rs.1.64 Millions.

The details of the CSR initiative has been mentioned in Annexure B which forms
part of this Report.

The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, provides that the Constitution of CSR
Committee is not mandatory if total amount to be spent as per the CSR obligation
of the Company is less than Rs. 50 Lakhs and in such cases the Board can discharge
the functions of CSR Committee. However, subsequent amendment to the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 pursuant to the
MCA notification dated 20th September, 2022 provides that a company having any
amount in its Unspent Corporate Social Respansibility Account as per sub-sectjon
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(6) of section 135 shall constitute a CSR Committee and comply with the provisions
contained in sub-sections (2) to (6) of the said section. As the Company have
unspent amount as at the end of the financial year 2024-25.Therefore the Board
of Directors has required to constitute CSR committee.

22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (As required under section 134(3)(m)of
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

The company uses power saving lighting equipment's for its office and
workshop and saves power wherever there is scope for energy saving.

No technology absorption has taken place during the year under
consideration.

There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year.

23.BOARD EVALUATION

The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of the individual
directors and the Board, which includes criteria for performance evaluation.
The Board of directors have carried out an evaluation of its own performance
and of its committees as well as its individual directors, on the basis of criteria
such as composition of the board / committee structure, effectiveness, its
process, information flow, functioning etc.

Feedback was sought from all the Directors of the Company, by way of a
structured questionnaire covering various aspects, on performance evaluation
of the Board, Committees of Board and the Chairman

24.RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, access, monitor and
mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the
business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuous basis.

25, VIGIL MECHANISM

During financial under review the Company does not meet the criteria specified
under section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013 so thereisno requnrement to form
a vigil mechanism or whistle blower policy.
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26.MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES/REGULATORS

During the financial year under review, there were no material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and
Company's operations in future.

27.STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. R. G. N. Price & Co., Chartered Accountants was appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 15% Annual General Meeting of the Company for a
period of 5 years till the conclusion of the 20% Annual General Meeting.

28.STATUTORY AUDITOR'S'REPORT

The Statutory Auditors' in their Report for the financial year ending 315t March,
2025 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

29.SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has appointed
Mr. M.C. Sajumon, Practising' Company Secretary, Kochi as Secretarial Auditor to
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ending 3715t March,
2025. The secretarial auditor's report does not contain any qualifications
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer.

30.INTERNAL AUDIT

Company has established a full-fledged internal audit team headed by a qualified
Chartered Accountant, Mr. Sojan Chacko. Audit team conducts regular reviews of
the business process, operations and financial transactions to ensure adequacy
and existence of effective control systems; investigate probable risks, deviations,
fraud or misappropriations.

31. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND
SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2

In terms of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company is complying with the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)
with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings and such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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32.ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the company is available at the website of the Company at
https://pawlin/

33, HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Human Resource Department plays a pivotal role in achieving organizational
excellence. Your Company constantly strives to develop quality human resources,
to meet the challenges of competitive business environment and to build critical
capabilities in achieving the Company's objectives and goals. The Company is
continuously renewing and updating the knowledge and skill of its employees at
all levels through training and development.

As on 31st March, 2025! the Company had a total head count of 163 employees.
Your Company takes significant efforts on employee development by imparting
training to employees at the various levels.

34.DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee as required under the said
Act to take necessary preventive actions as may be possible and also to carry out
redressal of complaints, if any, on sexual harassment and for matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto. Summary of sexual harassment complaints
received and disposed of during the financial year 2024-25 are as follows:

No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year: 0
No of complaints received :0

No of complaints disposed off : 0

Number of cases pending at the end of the year: 0

The Committee has submitted the Annual Report on POSH to the Company and the
Board of Directors took note of the same at their meeting dated 14th March, 2025.
The report has also been submitted to the District Officer, pursuant to Section 21
of the POSH Act, 2013.

35. MATERNITY BENEFIT . : '

The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the Maternity
Benefit Act, 1961, and has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women
employees during the year.
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36.INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, the company enjoyed cordial relationship with
workers and employees at all levels and the Directors thank all the employees
for their continued support, co-operation and valuable contributions.

37.DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE APPLICATION AS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING IS
PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE (IBC), 2016
DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR.

Not applicable

38.DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNTS OF THE
VALUATION EXECUTED AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE
VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THERE OF.

Not applicable

39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to express their appreciation to the shareholders and other
stakeholders for their continued faith in the company and also for their valuable
support.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

e

Francis K Paul

(Director)
' DIN: 00018827 DIN: 00018825
Place: Kochi-25
Date: 15.05.2025
L]

BRANCHES
MARQLAND . MARQLAND MARQLAND HMARQLAND
Survey Mo. 8/2, Venkatala, Mo. 54/2 & 55/2, Ranka Colony Road, |  1-N §-460/2, NH-17, Derahail, A-2, Patni Commerce Parlk, £
Alfrport Road, iNear Bagaluru Cross, | Bilekahalli, Bannerghatta Road, Ashok Nagar Post, Kottara, Central MIDC Hinga, A Kuttularan
Yelahablca, Bengalury - 560 064, Bengalury - 560 076. Mangalore, Karnataka - 575 006. Nagpur - 44028 ﬁ\ ettt




) an e o L. . Popular Autoworks Pyt, Lic,
BJ @ﬂj) U H@M AUtOWO ! kS 32/2571-H, Kuttukaran Centre
Mamangalam, Cochin 682025

£(0484) 23411134
@ cs@popl larv.com
w wwww kuttukaran.in

CIN U34100KL2009PTC024318
GSTIN Z9AAFCPOB4IEIZL

FORM NO. AQC -2 :
ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transaction under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis -

SL. No. Particulars Details

A__| Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
B [ Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

C | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction .
D

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any

g |Justification for entering into such contracts or ' NOT
arrangements or transactions' APPLICABLE
F_ | Date (s) of approval by the Board

G__| Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in
H | General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length
basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details

A Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

B Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transaction

NOT
C Duration of the contracts /arrangements/ transaction APPLICABLE
D Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

transaction including the value, if any
E Dates of approval by the Board, if any

F Amount paid as advance, if any
]
i
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business. -
SL, Particulars Details
No.

A | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

B | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

C | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

D N . .
transaction including the value, if any .

£ Justification for entering into such contracts or NOT
arrangements or transactions’ APPLICABLE

F | Date (s) of approval by the Board

G | Amount paid as advances, if any
Date on which the special resolution was passed in

H | General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

(*Refer Note No: 33 in the financial statements)

Place: Kochi
Date: 15.05.2025

BRANCHES
: MARQLAND
Survey Mo, 8/2, Venkatala,

Alrport Road, Near Bagaturu Cross,
Yelahanla, Bengaturu - 560 064.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Francis K Paul
(Director)
DIN: 00018825
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Annexure 8

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
(Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Sacial Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

CSR policy encompasses the company's philosophy for delineating its responsibility as a corporate
Citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for carrying out socially useful activities/ projects
and programs for welfare and sustainability, development of community at large. The CSR provisions
are applicable to the Company with effect from the Financial Year 2024-25 and the Company has
undertaken the CSR through NGO,

2. Composition of CSR Comimittee:

As per the provisions of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, a company is not required to
constitute a CSR Committee if its total CSR obligation does not exceed %50 takh. In such cases, the
Board of Directors may directly discharge the functions of the CSR Committee. !

For the financial year 2024-25, the Company's total CSR obligation amounted to ¥1.64 million, out
of which 20,181 million was spent during the year. The Board, in line with the applicable provisions,
directly monitored and discharged the CSR functions during the year.

However, pursuant to the amendment to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, notified on 20th September 2022, it is mandatory for & company having an unspent
amount in its Unspent CSR Account under sub-section (6) of section 135 to constitute a CSR
Committee and comply with the provisions of sub-sections (2) to (6) of section 135.

As the Company had an unspen't CSR amount transferred to the Unspent CSR Account pertaining to
the year under review, your Company is required to constitute a CSR Committee for the financial
year 2025-26 to comply with the amended regulatory requirement

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

4, Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR‘Projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

N/A

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135,
Rs.8,23,51,694/~

BRANCHES

Airport Road, Near Bagaluru Cross, Bilekahalli, Bannerghatta Road, Ashok Nagar Post, Kotlara, Central MIDC Hinga,

ulcairan
Yetahanka, Bengaluru - 560 064, Bengaluru - 560 076, Mangalore, Karnataka - 575 006. HNagpur - 44028

FRrCz Yy

MARQLAND MARQLAND IMARQLAND MARQLAND
Survey No. 8/2, Venkatala, Np, 54/2 & 55/2, Ranka Colony Road, | 1-N 6-460/2, NH-17, Derabail, A-2, Patni Commerce Park, /;"/}yr K
Q utt
)




Popular Autoworks Pvt, Lid.

P(@ [D u ﬂéﬁ i A U t ow O r k S, 32/2571-H, Kuttukaran Centre

Mamangalam), Cochin 682025

£(0484) 23411134
e cs@popu larv.com
w www.kuttukaran.in

CIN U34100KL2009PTC024318
GSTIN 29AAFCPOB4TEIZL

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.

Rs. 16,47,034.00/-
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years,
Nil
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.
Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].

Rs. 16,47,034.00/-
6. (@) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project).

Rs.1,81,084/-
(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads.
Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable, '
N/A
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)].
Rs.1,81,084/-
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Amount to Unspent CSR Account as | under Schedule VIl as per second proviso
Spent for per sub-section (6) of to sub-section (5) of section 135.
the section 135.
Financial
Year. (in Rs.)
Amount. Date of Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
1,81,084 -14,65,951 25/04/2025 | - - -

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: Nil

Amount (in Rs.)

g SLNo | Particular
i (D | Two percent of average net profit of the companyas | 16,47,034
per sub-section (5) of section 135
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,81,084

(i) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(i)-(iii)] -
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(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes | -
or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial -
Years [(ii))-(iv)]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

Sl | Precedi | Amount Balance Amount | Amount Amount | Defici
No | ng transferre | Amountin | Spentin | transferred toa | remainin | e ncy,
Financi | dto Unspent the Fund as gtobe ifany
al Unspent CSR Financia | specified under | spentin
Year(s) | CSR Account lYear Schedule Vilas | succeedi
Account under (inRs) | persecond ng
under sub-secii proviso to sub- | Financial
sub- on (6) of section (5) of Years (in
section section section 135, if Rs)
(6) of 135 (in any
section Rs.)
135 (in
Rs.)
Amou | Date of
nt(in | Transf
Rs) er
1 FY-1 - - - - - - -
2 FY-2 - - - - - - -
3 FY-3 - - - - - - -

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility

amount spent in the Financial Year:

Nil

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
sub-section (5) of section 135.

Nil

Place: Kochi-25
Date: 15.05.2025

BRANCHES
MARQLAND

Survey No. 8/2, Venkatala,
Airport Read, Near Bagaluru Cross,
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MARQLAND
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Forand on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

o

Francis K. Paul
Director
DIN: 00018825
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Annexure B.7

Details of Amount spent/unspent for the Financial Year

1. (a) Details of CSR amount spent against angoing projects for the financial year:

Mm@ €)] @| ) (6) ™ (8) (® | @0) )]
Sl Name of | ltem from |Local| Location | Project| Amount Amount | Amount |Mod| Mode of
N| the |[thelistof|area| ofthe |duratio|allocated for| spentinthe |transferr| e of Implementati
o.| Project. | activities |(Yes| project. n. [theproject(in current edto |Impl|on-Through
in /No), Rs.). financial Year| Unspent | eme implementing|
Schedule (inRs.). CSR [ntati| Agency
Vil to the et Account { on -

Act. S':E;t D::s,;“ for'the Direc Name Rgzli:;t
project | t ration
asper [(Yes/ numbel
Section | No). -

1135(6) (in| . '
Rs.)
1. [Surakshit|Promoting| Yes | Kerala, |4 years| 5,50,000 181,084 |14,65,951|Yes IK.P.Pa |[CSROO
marg |Education Ernakula ul 01523
m and Found 3
Thrissur ation
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:Nil
m @ G | @ ©) (6) @ (8
SL.| Name ltem from|Locall Lacation of | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
No, of the |the list of|area| the project. |spent for[implementation| - Through implementing
Project activities|(Yes/] the - Direct agency.
in No). project (Yes/No).
schedule State/|District| (in Rs.). Name, * CSR
Vilto the registration
Act. number.
1
Total

(c) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (1b+1c+1d): 1,81,084/-

Forand on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Popular Autowaorks Private Limited

e

Francis K. Paul

Director
Place: Kochi-25
Date: 15.05.2025
1
’
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PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY L <. .. E-mail: cfccachin@gmail.com
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201 4]

To '
The Members

Popular Autoworks Private Limited
32/2571-H, Kuttukaran Centre,
Mamangalam,

Ernakulam Kerala-682025.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Popular Autoworks Private Limited
(CIN: U34100KL2009PTCO24318) (hereinafter called the Company), incorporated on
15.06.2009, having registered office at Door No 32/2571-H, Kuttukaran Cenire,
Mamangalam, Ernakulam Kerala-682025 and carrying on the business of sale and service of -
Passenger vehicles, sale of Spare parts and accessories. The Company is a deemed public
company, being the wholly owned subsidiary of M/s Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(CIN: L50102KL1983PLCOO3741), a listed entity.Secretarial Audit of M/s Popular
Autoworks Private Limited for the financial year ending on 31.03.2025 was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the. andit
period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 (period under report/review),
complied ‘with ‘the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafier:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records

maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2025, according to the
provisions of:

L. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
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Il. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA)and the rules made there
under- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted deemed public company;

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; The
Company had dematerialised its share certificates and appointed M/s Integrated Registry
Management Services Private Limited as the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) to comply
with the provisions of the Act. '

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings. There was no Foreign Direct Investment in the company and the
company has not made any Overseas Direct. Investment and also had not availed External
Commercial Borrowings.

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act*):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations, 2015- Not
applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public company;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Régulations, 2011- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed
public company; ’

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public
company; ’ .

d) The Securities ‘and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 - The Company has complied with Regulations of
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to it, in connection with the
Initial Public Offering of the holding CompanyM/s Popular Vehicles and Services
Limited; )

€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not applicable as the company
is an unlisted/ deemed public company and has not offered any Employee Stock
Option Scheme and' Employee Stock Purchase Scheme during the period under
review; :

D) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)

- Regulations, 2014~ Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public
company and has not offered any shares or granted any options pursuant to any
Employee Benefit Scheme during the period under review;
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h) The Securities and Exchange Board .of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 - Not applicable as the company is an
unlisted/deemed public company and not registered as a Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agent; '

1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 - Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public
company; and

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public company and has
not bought back any securities during the period under review.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and Memorandum of Association of
the company. :

Durihg the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above, to the extent applicable to
the company. ;

VI. The company has identified and informed me that the industry/sector-specific laws,
applicable to the company under Central and/or State legislations, are:

a) Motor Vehicles Act,1988 and rules made thereunder;

VIL The company has also identified and informed me that the following Environmental
Laws, Labour laws and General laws are specifically applicable to the company under
Central and/or State legislations Environmental Lavs viz; Environment Protection Act,
1986 and rules made there under; Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and
rules made there under; Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and rules made
there under; Noise Pollution '(Regulatic'm and Control) Rules,2000, The Hazardous Wastes
(Management Handling and Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008 and Labour Laws Viz;
The Employees® State Insurance Act, 1965 and rules made there under, The Contract Labour
(Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and rules made there under, Apprentices Act ,1961 and
rules made there under, The Employees® Provident Fund & Misc, Provisions Act, 1952 and
rules made there under; and Kerala Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1960 and
other General Laws viz; The Factories Act 1948 and rules made there under; The Industrial
Disputes Act, 1947 and rules made thereunder; vis-a-vis The Sexua] Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

For the purpose of examining the adequacy of compliances with industry/sector specific laws
and Environmental laws, reliance has been placed on information/records produced by the
Company during the course of audit and the Management Representation Letter issued by the
Managing Director of the Company.and the reporting is limited to that extent and based on

' ?
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that I am of the opinion that the companj'he;'é generally complied with the specific lawsand
Environmental laws etc.

I further report that the compli'afice by the company of the financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws and various Iabour laws and other laws has not been reviewed in this audit,
since they do not come under the scope of this audit. However, based on the information
received and records maintained by the company and on their examination, I report that
there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with general laws like labour
laws, Competition law, environmental laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. '

I further report thatthe Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The
Company has appointed whole-time Key Managerial Personne] viz, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Executive Officer, and Company Secretary.Since the Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited, it has availed the exemption from the
requirement to appoint Independent Directors on its Board, as provided under the
notification dated 5th July 2017, which amended Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. The said amendment exempts an unlisted public
company that is a wholly owned subsidiary from the requirement to appoint Independent
Directors. The Company is a deemed public company. Hence, the company has not
appointed Independent Directors. '

The following changes in the composition of the Board of directors and other KMPs took

place during the audit period and were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act,

(1) Mr. Naveen Philip (DIN:00018827), Director, who retired by rotation in terms of
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 was re-appointed as Director of the
Company at the 15" Annual General Meeting held on 20t July 2024 as
recommended by the Board at their meeting held on 15.05.2024.

(2) Mrs. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051 164) was appointed as an Additional Director on the -

Board of Directors of the Company, w.e.f, 234 September 2024, pursuant to the
provisions of Second proviso to Section 149(1) and Section 161 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014. ' ;

(3) Mr.Thomas Anthappan Karedan (DIN: 08770690) was appointed as an Additional
Director on the Board of Directors of the Company, w.e.f,14™ March 2025, pursuant
to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Appointment and Quealification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

(4) Mr. Maniyara Sajjan (DIN: 01850974) has resigned from the Board of Directors of .

the Company w.e.f. 14™ March 2025.

CPN-2385
COCHIN-18
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I further report that the Company held Seven (7) Board meetings during the period under
review, respectively on 09.04.2024, 15.05.2024, 10.08.2024, 23.09.2024, 12.11.2024,
06.02.2025 and 14.03.2025.Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on the agenda were sent in advance, duly complying
with the time limits specified and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the mesting for meaningful
participation at the meeting. The proceedings of the above meetings have been recorded and
signed by the Chairman.

The Board at the meetings held respectively on 09.04.2024, 23.09.2024 and 14.03.2025 took -
note of the Declarations given by the Directors pursuant to Section 164(2) of the Act and
ensured that none of the directors are disqualifiedunder the provisions of Section 164(2) of
the Act. The Board also noted the Disclostre of interest and shareholding of Directors
received pursuant to Section 184(1) of the Act.

During the period under report, the Company entered into related party transactions with its
holding Company, other group Companies, Associate or fellow subsidiariesincluding
transactions in the nature of purchase and sale of goods, Vehicles, fixed assets, availing or
rendering of services, payment and receipt of Corporate Guarantee Commission etc. and in
respect of which the Company has complied with provisions of Sections 188 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable. Approval for entering into related party transactions
during the financial year 2024-25 was accorded at the Board Meeting held on 09.04.2024.
Additionally, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 14.03.2025, gave omnibus
approval to the Company for entering into related party transactions with its holding
Company, other group Companies, Associate or fellow subsidiaries, within the prescribed
limits and under arm’s length conditions, for the upcoming financial year 2025-26.

Dwing the reporting period, Mr. A.S. Narayanamoorthy, Chartered Accountant
(Membership No. 13980),was retired and M/s R.GN. Price & Co. (FRN 0027858),
Chartered Accountants, Cochin- 682036, was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, to hold office from the conclusion of the 15" Annual General Meeting for a term
of consecutive five years till conclusion of the 20" Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held for the financial year 2028-29, pursuant to proviso to Section 139(1) of the Act.
During the period under report, the Company has also appointed Secretarial Auditor for
conducting Secretarial Audit pursuant to Section 204 of the Act for a period of Three years
with effect from 01% April 2023 to 31% March 2026 in the Board Meeting held on 9" April
2024. The above appointments were duly intimated to the Registrar by filing necessary e-
Forms.

During the reporting period, the ' Finance & Authorisation Committee was reconstituted
twice by the Board of Directors at their meeting held respectively on 09.04.2024 and
14.03.2025.During the financial year 2024-25, the Finance & Authorisation Committee had
met nine (9) times respectively on °16.04.2024, 15.05.2024, 06.06.2024, 22.07.2024,
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02.09.2024, 25.11.2024, 30.12.2024, 20.02.2025 and 19.03.2025. The proceedings of the
above committee meetings were duly recorded and signed by the Chairman and were also
duly considered by the Directors in their respective Board meetings.

During the reporting period, the Company came under the purview of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, based on the Net profit criteria. However, in accordance with the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 and Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules, 2022
the constitution of a CSR Committee was not mandatory for the Company as the CSR
obligation was less than ¥ 50 lakh, and there was no unspent CSR amount from prior years.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors discharged the functions of the CSR Committee. During
the reporting period, the Company was obligated to spend ¥ 16,47,034/- on its Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) activities, in accordance with Section 135(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Out of this total CSR obligation, ¥ 5,50,000/- was transferred to the
implementing agency, K P Paul Foundation (CSR Registration Number: CSR00015233).
The agency utilized % 1,81,084/- for an ongoing CSR project titled ‘Surakshit Marg’, which
focuses on promoting road safety awareness. This project falls under Schedule VII (ii) of the
Companies Act, 2013, specifically focusing on the promotion of education. The unutilized
balance of ¥3,68,916.50/- from the finds disbursed to K P Paul Foundation was transferred
back to the Company’s Unspent CSR Account on 21% April 2025. Additionally, the
remaining unspent amount of ¥ 10,97,034/- was transferred by the Company to the Unspent
CSR Account on 25th April 2025. Accordingly, in compliance with Section 135(6) of the
Act, the total amount transferred to the Unspent CSR Account during the reporting period
was ¥ 14,65,950.50/-.

Though the company is a deemed public company and wholly owned subsidiary of a public
company, Audit Committee and-Nomination and Remuneration Committee were not
constituted u/s 177 and 178 respectively as the wholly owned subsidiary Companies of a
Public Company are exempted from constituting an Audit Committee and Nomination and .
Remuneration Committee vide MCA Notification dated 13" uly 2017.

The 15MAnnual General Meeting of the company for the financial year ending 31.03.2024
was held on 29.07.2024 at the Registered Office of the Company. The proceedings of the
above meeting were recorded and signed by the Chairman.

During the reporting period, the Company declared a dividend of %0.35 per equity share of
face value %10/~ each at its 15™Annual General Meeting held on 29MTuly 2024as
recommended by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 15.05.2024. The dividend
was declared for the financial year ended 31.03.2024 on 2,51,11,780 equity shares of T10/-
each outstanding as on the record date, aggregating to ¥ 8.79 million, and was paid within
the prescribed timeline. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 123 of
the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the declaration and payment of dividends.
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As per the records of the Company and the explanation received, the Company has
constituted an Internal Complajﬁts,:_Committee (ICC) in compliance with the provisions of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 ("POSH Act"). The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 14% March 2025,
took note of the Annual Report submitted by the ICC for the Calendar Year 2024 under the
POSH Act. The Board noted that there were no complaints received, disposed of and
pending for more than 90 days during the above calendar year, As confirmed, the Committee
has also submitted the Annual Report to the District Officer, in accordance with Section 21
of the POSH Act, 2013.

I further report that, based on the information received and records maintained by the
company, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its

size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, -
regulations, and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the company hasno specific events/actions
having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc:

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed hereto a _Annexure A
and forms an integral part of this report. Z / .

CPN-2385
COCHIN-18

UDIN: A009868G 000328593
Place: Kochi-18
Date: 15.05.2025

Practising Company S

MN: A9868, C P: No.: 2385

ICSI Unique Code: I11995KE067800
Peer Review Cert. No. 6496/2025
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To

‘Annexure A’

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members , '
Popular Autoworks Private Limited
32/2571-H, Kuttukaran Centre,
Mamangalam,

Ernakulam Kerala-682025.

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial or other statutory records is the responsibility of the
management of the company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurances about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in

records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books
of Accounts of the company.

Whereever required, I have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the fiuture viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company. S

UDIN: A009868G 000328593 M.C. SAJUMON
Place: Kochi-18 Practising Company Secretary,
Date: 15.05.2025 . MN: A9868, C P. No.: 2385

ICSI Unique Code: 11995KE067800
Peer Review Cert, No. 6496/2025
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. R. G. N. PRICE & CO.
(A

NoIA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
PHONE : OFFICE : 2316538, 2312960 G-234, PRICE CHAMBERS
E-mail : priceco@rgnprice.com +  PANAMPILLY NAGAR
website : www.rgnprice.com . COCHIN - 682 036

Offices at :
CHENNAI, MUMBAI, BANGALORE, QUILON, CALICUT

Our Ref:

08/2025 15.05.2025
UDIN: 25023933BMLHSQ1618

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
POPULAR AUTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion.

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Popular Autoworks Private
Limited (“the Company®) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2025, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of materjal accounting policies and
other explanatoty information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March 2025, and PROFIT, Changes in
Equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. we
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.




Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the Information other than the financial
statements and auditors repoit thereon. The said information comprises the information included in
the Directors Report (Other information), but does not include the financial statements and our audit
report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. )
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, otherwise appear to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This res;Sonsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.




Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audif of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements, .

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. we also;

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Cormpanies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. ‘ .

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. 1f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safqguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we. give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such confrols, refer our separate Report in Annexure
A,

No managerial remuneration was paid during the year and hence reporting on compliance with the
provisions of section 197'read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial
position,




b.

d.

The Company did not have 7y ‘long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company. ' )

(i) The management, as explained in Note No. 34 of the financial statements, has
represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of fund(s) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of thie Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management, as explained in Note No. 35 of the financial statements, has
represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iif) Based on such audit procedures, that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The dividend declared and paid during the year by the company is in compliance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company, has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility. The audit trail facility has been operating in all accounting software
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, for the
periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail
has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

Chartered Accountants
%ﬁw@&&w
PV VEERAMANI —

Partner
~M. No. 23933 FR. Np fNa788S




ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF POPULAR AUTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED ONTHE STANDALONE

i) Fixed Assets

(a) (A) The Company has maintained records showing particulars of Property, Plant and Equipment
including quantitative details and situation,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing ful].particulars of intangible assets.

(b) These Properties, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical
verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties other than improvements to leasehold
buildings.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipments during the year.

(e) As per the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii) Inventories

(a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of stock were not material
having regard to the size of the operation of the company.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during
the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, the
quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are
in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iii) Investments/Loans/Advances and Guarantees

During the year, the company has not made any investments in or provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties other than those given in the normal course of
business. Accordingly, none of the subclauses under this heading are applicable.
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iv) Compliance with Sec 185 and Sec 186, -

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company had not
granted any loans to parties to whom provisions of Sec 185 applies and consequently clauses relating
to terms and conditions of loan, payment of interest and repayment of principal and status of overdue
are not applicable, ‘

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
made any investments, guarantees during the year to which the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of

the Companies Act 2013 applies.

v) Fixed Deposits

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits to which the provisions of Section 73 to 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under applies.

vi) Cost Records
In owr opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section ,148(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013, for the company.

vii) Statutory Dues

(a) The company was generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues towards Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods &
Service Tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues, wherever applicable. There were no
arrears of undisputed statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year for a period of more
than six months from thle date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the company, there were no disputed statutory dues outstanding as
on the date of balance sheet.

viii) Undisclosed Income

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) Repayment of Loans

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not defaulted in repayment of interest and principal to any lender.




(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the company is not declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender;

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which
they were obtained. !

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures,

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies,

x) Application of funds raised through public offer

(a) The company has not raised any funds through public offer during the year.

(b) The company has not raised any funds during the year by way of preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible).

xi) Frauds
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud, on or by the company, has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) Asno fraud, on or by the company, has been noticed or reported during the year, reporting under
this clause as per section 143(12) is not applicable.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year.

xii) Nidhi Company

i In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a
é Nidhi company and hence this clause in not applicable to the company.




xiii) Related Party Transactions

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

Being a wholly owned subsidiary, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee as
per section 77 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 (2) of Companies (Appointment and

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended.

xiv) Internal Audit

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period
under audit

xv) Non-Cash Transactions ,

As explained to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
other persons during the year.

xvi) Regisiration with RBI

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

xvii) Cash Losses

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial.

xviii) Resignation of Auditor

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordi'ngly this clause is
not applicable,

xix) Going Concern

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,




nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due,

xx) Corporate Social Responsibility

(a) The company does not have any unspent amount towards CSR on item other than ongoing
project and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent amount to a special
account, within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year in compliance with
section 135(6) of the said Act.

xxi) Observations by component auditors

The Company does not have any subsidiary companies and hence reporting under this clause
regarding qualifications or adverse remarks by the auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order reports of subsidiary companies is not applicable.

For R.G.N. PRICE & co,

Chartered Accountants
Swlice oty

PM. VEERAMANI —

ner

M. No. 23933, fg. No. 0027855




ANNEXURE@ TO THE INDEP,‘EN;DENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF POPULAR AUTOWORKS PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Popular Autoworks Private
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India”, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

I) pertain to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

Chartered Accountants

@wmmaw

P.M. VEERAMANI /

Partner
M s 270%7 FR N, 002785S
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POPULAR AUTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED, KUTTUKARAN CENTRE MAMANGALAM, KOCHI 25
STATEMENT OF TOTAL INCOME FOR THE ASSESSMENT YEAR 2025-26
Yenr Ended 31.03,2025 PAN - AAFCPOS41E
STATUS-COMPARY

INCOME FROM BUSINESS

cumpnny, provisions of MAT are not applicnble.
]

3 Banlt Details

Bank Name : Kotak Mahindra Bank
AICNa  :5011192577

IFSC Code : KKBK0000424
Branch : Bengalunt

Type of a« Cash Credit

Profit as per Statenjem of Profit and Loss - 19,86,48,738
Add s Tnndmissibles
Deprecinti idered sep ly - other than on ROU assets (Note: 23) 34591071
Provision for gratuity (Vote: 21) ! 11,55,918
Provision for Bonus (iVose: 21) 28,93,101
Pruvision for Leave Encashment (Note: 21) 4,57,236
Provision for Bad & Doubtful debis (Note 2.4) 320,177
Interest on shortfall of puyment of advance tax (Note 22) 136422
Interest cost of Gratuity os per Actuarinl Valuation (Vofe: 22) 2,90,285
Ind AS Adjustments (Refer Note 1 below) 2,06,75,325 6,11,19,535
25,97,68,273
Less : Adinissibles
Disllowance under scction 43B(h) disalfowed in PY allowed us paid 1,13,697 .
Gain on sale of propety, plnut and equipments (Note 18} 942,671
Contribution to gratuity fund (Nete 29) 28,92,441
Depreciution as per Income Tax Act 4,14,44,420 4,53,93,235
Profit from husiness 21,43,75,038
Gross Total Income 21,43,75,038
Less: Deduction ws 80JJAA 1,00,037
‘Taxnble Income 21,42,75,001
Tax due @@ 22% 4,71,40,500
Add: Surcharge @ 10% 47,14,050
5,18,54,550
Add: Health and Educution Cess @ 4% 20,74,182
5,39,28,732
Less: TDS & TCS 98,19,556
Tax Payable 4,41,09,176
Adg: Interest u/s 234C 7,36,422 7,36,422
Balance payable 4,48,45,598
Advance Tax
13-09-2024 1,50,00,000
13-12-2024 50,00,000
14-03-2025 2,60,00,000 4,60,00,000
Refund (11,54,402) .
Nofes:
1 Ind AS adjustmient chavged to Profit & Loss( Net)
\ Item Amount
Amortisation of Right of Uses ~ IndAS 109 (Showed under ion) 19,24,351
Interest Income from Rent Deposit- IndAS 109 {15,25,594)
Tnterest on Lease Liability- IndAS 116 4,26,92,329
Amortisation of Right of Uses- IndAS 116 3,82,42,260
Acerued rent exy for the period (6,06,58,021)
Totnl 2,06,75,325

2 ‘The company has opted to avail lower rate of {ax as per section 115BAA of Income Tax Act 1961, Caonsequent to the option availed by the
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 Mar 2025
(AN smounts in Indian Rupees million)

Asat Asat
Notes 31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Assels
Non-current assets
Properly, plant and equipment 4 281.14 27529
Right-of-use assets 31 35791 . 39645
Intangible assets 5 0.15 . 0.18
Other financial assets 10 24.12 22.84
Income tax assets (net) 25 2.18 349
Deferred tax assets (net) 25 . 3658 36.87
Other non-current asscts 6 17.00 18.10
Total non-current assets 719.07 . 15292
Current assets
Invenlorics 7 51032 278,57
Financial assels
Tiade receivables 8 157.49 10549
Cash and cash equivalents 9 5.04 19.74
Other finaneiat assels 10 0.23 -
Other current assels 6 . 2501 , - 4621
Total current assets 698.09 450,01
Total assets . 1,417.16 . 1,202.93
Equity and liabilities
Equlty
Equity sharc capital 11 251.12 ©o25112
Other equity 210.32 ~ 1845
Total cquily 461.94  329.57
Liabilities
Non-current labilitics
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 12 46.87 R 62.61
Lease linbilities 31 467.39 490.02
Provisions 14 . 554 5.57
Other non-current liabilitics 15 - 1.20 N 3.49
Total non-current liabilities 521.00 561.69
Current labilities -
Financial liabilities
Borowings 12 188.44 122.55
Lease liabilities 31 22.68 ~18.01
Trade payables 16
- Total owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalt enterpriscs ' 0.80 B W |
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . 1528 22.39
Other financial ubilitics 13 2134 11.68
Provisions 14 0.77 . 1.10
Other current Jiabilitics 15 184.92 134.16
Total current Habilities 434.23 © 3167
Total Yiabilites 955.23 873.36
Tatal equity and Habilities 1,417.16 o 1,202.93
Material accounting policies 1-3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
4.38

As per our repost of even date atfached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

Chartered Accountants ,

%Mﬂm
p.M.VEERAMANI ==

Partner
M. No. 23933, FR, No. 0027855

i€ & oM

forand on beha for and on behnlf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Autow Popular Autoworks Private Limited
CIN': U34100F CIN : U34100KL2009PTC024318

\yw\@vq"/ 2 WOM

aveerrEhil Francis K Paul
reclor Director
DIN: 0001882§ DIN:00018825
Place: Kochi Place: Kochi
) Date: Date:
/

/ Ag\*/ L
Juhﬁcrghcsc A Suresh Kumar Varm) TV
Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Sceretary
Place: Kochi Place: Bangalore Place: Kochi
Date: Date: Date:
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Popular Autowoerks Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Yem‘ ended 31 Mar 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Other expenses

Total expenses ,

Profit before tay and exceptional item
Exceptional item
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Current fax
MAT credit entitlement ulilised
Deferred tax
Total tax expense

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan
Income (ax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each)
Basic and diluted (in INR)

Basic (in INR)

Diluted (in INR)

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our repott of even-dale attached

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For R.G.N. PRICE & CO. Populdr Autoworlks Private Limited, Xochi - 25

Chartered Accountants CIN : U34100KL2009PTC024318

A oL a8
R.M. VEERAMANW

Partner
M. No. 23933, FR, No. 0027855

1§ 2eag

Date:

Notes

17
18

19
20
21
22
23
24

25

25

26

ﬂM
—

irector

Year Ended
31 Mar 2025

Year Ended
31 March 2024

{Audited) (Audited)
- 4,706.22 3,620.77
2641 20.82
4,732,63 3.659.50
4,380.10 3,168.98
(229.96) {64.86)
140.21 113.47
74.09 75.54
74.76 74.07
94.79 wn
4,533.98 3.449.94
198.65 209.65
198.65 209.65
36.34 46.66
i 16.18
(0.49) 4.40
¢ 56.84 Z3.44
141,81 151.21
(0.86) ©.10)
0.21 0.03
(0.65) (0.07)
14115 | | 151,14 |
5.62 6.02
5.62 602

DIN: 00018827

Place; Kochi

Date:

A Suresh IKKumar
Chief Executive Officer
Place; Bangalore

Date:

Al

Francis K Paul
Director
DIN:00018825
Place: Kochi
Date:

i

Varun TV
Company Secretary
Place: Kochi

Date:




Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

A, Equity share capital
Parficulars Notes Amount
_ Equity shaves (in millions)
Balance as at 1 Aprii 2023 2,51,11,780 25100
Changes in cquity share capital during 2023.24 11 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 , 2,51,11,780 251,00
Balance as 1t 1 April 2024 2,51,11,780 25100
Changes in equity share capital during 2024-25 11 - -
Balance ns nt 31 Moy 2(_)25 2,51,11,780 251.00
B Other cquity
Reserves nnd surplus Items o!‘oﬂ-tcr
comprehensive fncome
_ Total other equity
Particulars Remeasurement of net attributable to equity
Securities General Retuined . N holders of the Company
. _— . defined benefit Liability/
premium reserve earnings
(asset), net of tax
Balance as at 01 Apr 2023 (74.1'1) 142 (72.69)
“Toinl comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 151.21 - 151.21
Other comprehensive income, nct of tax ) - - - (0.07) (0.07)
‘Total comprehensive income - - 151.21 (0.07) 15114
Transferred to retained eamings - - (0.07) 0.07 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 ' ’ - - 77,03 142 78.45
Bnlance as at 01 Apr 2024 ) 7703 1.42 78,45
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 141.81 - 14181 |.
Less: Finnf Dividend ' (8.79) (8.79)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - (0.65) (0.65)
‘Total comprehensive income - - 133,02 (0.65) 132,37
Transferred to retained carnings - - . (0.65) 0.65 -
Bulance.ns at 31 Mar 2025 . - - 209,40 142 210.82

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity Is as follows:
) Retained carnings

This represents the profits / losses of the Company carned till date, net of appropriations.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone f nancial stalements,

As per our report of cven date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

Sfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Autoworks Private Limited
CIN: U34100KL2009PTC024318

Chartered Accountants

Efmﬁww
P.M.VEERAMANI ="

Partner
M. No. 23933, FR, No. 002785S

1$ % 20

Place: Kochi
Date:

;»“
s

DIN: 00018827

Place: Kochi
Date:

Date:

h,,‘ Py

) Francis K Paul
Director
DIN:00018825
Place: Kochi
Date:

b=

A Suresh Kumar
Chief Executive Officer
Place; Bangalore

Varun TV
Company Sceretary
Place: Kochi

' Date:

COCHIN
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Standalone statement of cash flows for the period ended 31 Mar 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Fash flows from operaling activities
it before tax and exceptional item
“wstljustments:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expensc
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Bad Debts written off
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back
Interest income
(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)

Net (gain)/loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss

Operating cash flow before working eapital changes

‘Working capital movements:

(Increase) /decrease in inventorics

Increase in trade reccivables

(Incrensc) /decrease in loans and other financial assets and other assels
Increasc/(decrease) in liabilitics and provisions

Cnsh generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Long term loans and advance

Interest received

Acquisition of property, plant and cquipment including capital advances

Acquisition of intangible assets including intangibles under development

Procceds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cnsh used in investing activities (B)

Cash {lows from financing activitics

Interest paid

Dividend paid

Long-term provisions

Long-term borrowings availed

Long-term borrowings repaid

Short-term borrowings (repaid) / availed, net

Interest on lease Habilitics

Principal paynent of lease Habilities

Net eash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in eash nnd cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash nnd cash equivalents at the end of the year

(Refer (o note 09 - Cash and cash cquivalents)

As per report of even date

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
For R.G.N. PRICE & CO, Popular Autoworks Privaie Limited, Kochi - 25
CIN : U34100KL2009PTC024318

Chartered Accountants

%Wm
P.M. VEERAMANI ="

Partner
M, No. 23933, FR. No. 002785S

1§ & 20

Chief Finance Qfficer
Place; Kochi
Date:

As at As at

31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
(Audited)

198.65 209.65
74.09 75.54
74.76 74.07
(0.32) 0.05
0.18 0.03
(14.42) (8.03)
(1.53) (1.62)
(0.94) {4.92)
(0.86) (0.10)
329.61 344,67
(231.75) (72.94)
(52.18) (65.31)
21.60 (14.06)
. 6642 - 7136
133.69 263.72
(55.82) (46.23)
17.87 217.49
(1.70) (0.20)
1.53 1.62
(52.17) 54.97)
(0.15) (0.02)
12,21 16.50
(40.29) 37.07)
(30.66) (31.54)

(8.79) -

(2.32) 4,21

- 60.00
(15.74) (130.68)
65.89 (48.78)

. {42.69) (44.00)
(17.97) (13.70)
(52.28) (204.49)
(14.79) (24.07)
19.74 43,82

. 5.04 19.74

O\;
Nav
(Di%ec‘;or
DIN: 00018827

Placc: Kochi
Datc:

Mok

A Suresh Kumar

Chief Exccutive Officer
Place: Bangalore

Dale:

Dircctor

Francis K Paul

DIN:00018825

Place: Kochi

Varun TV
Compuny Secretary
Place: Kochi

Date:
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flows for the period ended 31 Max 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

‘Reconciliation of financial linbilities forming part of financing activitics in accordance with Ind AS 7:

“Partlenlars As at Cash flows Non cash changes Asat
f 1 April 2024 Fair value  Others 31 Mar 2025
changes
Non current borrowings (including current maturitics) 69.80 (9.80) - - 60.00
Current borrowings (Refer note 12) 115.36 59.95 - - 175.31
Lease liabilities (refer note 31) ) 508.03 (60.66) - 42.69 490,06
Particulars Asat Cash flows Non cash changes As at
1 April 2023 Fairvalue  Others 31 Mar 2024
changes
Non current borrowings (including current maturities) . 173.42 (103.62) - - 69.80
Current borrowings (Refer note 12) 131.13 (15.77) - 115.36
Lease liabilities (refer note 31) 521.73 {57.70) 44,00 508.03

Cash Tlow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”.

(Refer to note 09 - Cash and cash equivalents)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

Chartered Accountants

e oot
PM.VEERAMANI =
Partner
M. No. 23933, FR. No, 002785S

18. < 2024

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Popular Autoworks Pyt Ltd
CIN ; U34100KL2009PTC024318
\‘7

ﬁrcctor
DIN: 00018827
Place: Kochi

Date:

A Suresh Kumar
Chief Executive Officer
Place: Bangalore

Chief Finanee Officer
Place; Kochi
Date: Date:
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& 1AMANGALAM \
COCHIN

Francis K Paul
Director
DIN:00018825
Place: Kochi

X

Varun TV
Company Sceretary
Place: Xochi

Date:
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)

* Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)

1.

Company overview

Popular Autoworks Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in 2009 as a Private
Limited Company. The Company is engaged in the business of sale and service of Passenger
vehicles, sale of spare parts and accessories, The Compary is headquartered in Kochi, India and
has operations in Karnataka. *

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited whose
financial statements are prepared in accordance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules 2015 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act), as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act. Consequently, these financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015. Further, being a
subsidiary of an unlisted public company, this Company is also deemed to be an unlisted public
company.

Details of Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation cutrency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cases where fair
value is applicable.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments .

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most material
effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

7\
MAMANGALAM \ =t
COCHIN




Popular Autoworlks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)

3. Material accounting policies

3.1 Property, plantand equipment
A.Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and road tax, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly atiributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or
loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date.
are shown under Other Non-current assets. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use
at each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed
assets that  necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are
capitalized. Other borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss.

B. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

C. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items or property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method. Leasehold
improvements to buildings are amortised over the lease termn or useful lives, as the case may be
based on the location of the branches as per Corporate Identity (CI) norms of principals.

Branches under Segment 1 are those where the CInorms of principals are regularly reviewed and
enhanced by the principals based on change in industry standards. Where the possibilities of
further expansions based on change in CI norms are limited, the dealers are required to vacate
and move to new locations as per CI policy. Accordingly, the leasehold improvements in such
locations are amortised over the principal lease term.
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)
not frequently reviewed and enhanced by the principals, the leasehold improvements are

amortised over the useful life prescribed under Schedule IT which is 60 years.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:-

Class of Assets Previous Life Revised Life
Leasehold Building ~ Segment 1 15 15 :
Leasehold Building - Segment 2 60 60
Plant and Machinery 15 15
Electrical Equipment’s 10 10
Office Equipment's 5 5
Computer and Accessories 3 3
Motor Car 8 8
Motor Cycle 10 10
Furniture and Fittings 10 10
Tools & Equipment’s 15 15

% For the above mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given
above best represent the useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and supporied by technical
advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I1 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

3.2 Intangibleassets: )

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible
assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is
included in amortization in profit or loss. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of assets Years
Software 3

Amortization method, useful.lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or
loss as incurred.

3.3 Employee benefits \

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and
ex-gratia. Short-term employeebenefitobligations are measured onan undiscounted basisand are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of pastservice provided by the employee and the amount
of obligation can be estimated reliably. '

MAMANGALAM 'g
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)

3.4

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
Contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal ox constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans
are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the
related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payment is available.

The company is covered under the Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India
for future payments of Gratuity as determined on actuarial basis by LIC of India. The contribution
is debited to gratuity payable.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and
discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial ga(ins and losses
are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest
expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

Other long term employee benefits

The Company’s net obliga"tion in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured based on
an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-
measurement gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they avise.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of

. W&’ determined by




Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)

35

3.6

discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet'date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not
provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under
the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss
on the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue
Revenue on sale of vehicles, spare parts and accessories is recognized when the risk and rewards
are transferred to the customer and is accounted net of GST and trade discounts, if any.

Revenue from services is recognized on rendering of services to customers.

Discounts and incentive income is recognized when the services are rendered and as per the
relevant scheme/ arrangement with the service receiver. Trade discount from
principal/manufacturer are also grouped under discount/incentive. In respect of other heads of
income, the Company follows the practice of recognizing income on an accrual basis.

Inventories

Inventories are valued on the basis of cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.
Cost for this purpose is arrived at as follows:

a) Vehicles, on Specific identification Basis.

b) Spares and accessories at weighted average method.

3.7 Financial instruments
3.7.1 Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

3.7.2 Classification and subsequept measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost,
FVTPL or fair value in other comprehensive income (FEVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model WhEgROH




Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated
as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismaich that would otherwise arise,

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and

\

|

\

|

Financial assets: Business model assessiment

\

} information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those
policies in practice.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
o within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for de recognition
are not considered sales for this puipose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition
of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers: '

PP

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and

682025 1%/

éy
>




Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rupees millions)
features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial _assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial _assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
amortized cost effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impaitment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Equity investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
at FVOCI recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent ieasurement and gnins and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on de recognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

3.7.3 De recognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recognized in profit or loss.

3.7.4 Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset an
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sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. '

3.7.5 Derivative financial instruments

38

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest
rate risk exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized
in profit or loss. .

Impairment

i) Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost
are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

ify Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped
together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) ig thechigher of its value in use and its
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fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company

_reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no

39

3.10

longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Ind AS -116 Leases

Ind AS 116 has replaced existing leases standard with effect from 01.04.2019, Ind AS 17 Leases
(Ind AS 17) and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee
accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes present value of the lease payment
(discounted using incremental borrowing rate) as right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments and
lease rent expense will be replaced with the amortization of right-of use-asset and interest
accrued on lease liability. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
Jessees and will have consequential impact on cash flows categories as well. The new standard
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Company has applied the provisions of this standard only in respect of those lease
agreements other than short term leases. Where the non-cancellable period in the lease
agreements entered into by the Company are for a period of less than one year, such leases fall
within the meaning of short term lease as per the standard and thus qualifies for exemption as
per para 5 to 8 of Ind AS 116. Accordingly, this standard is not applied for short term leases.

Recognition of interest income or interest expense

Interest income other than received from banks is recognized on effective interest rate basis and
Interest Income from banks are based on statement received from banks.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of
the liability. ’

Interest income from temporarily investing amount borrowed for construction of capital asset

has been reduced from the amount of borrowing cost capitalized till the asset is substantially
ready for intended use.

COCHIN
, 682025
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3.11 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
yearand any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Minimum
Alternative Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current
tax in the profit or loss. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.
It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
toset off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability
on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii, Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in'respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses
and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent thatitis probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses,
the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will
be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognized or recognized, arereviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to
the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable . entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

3.12 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to getready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

e T T
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3.3 Earnings/loss per share

The basic earnings/loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for
the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted
averagenumber of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the
beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earning per share,
only potential equity shares that are dilutive ie. which reduces earnings per share or increases
loss per share are included. '

3.14, Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

3.15. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

3.16, Prior Period Items '
Expenses/income less than Rs. 10,00,000, if any, are not treated as prior period items as they are
not material considering the scale of operations of the company. Further, expense / income relating
to eatlier years which crystallised during the year are not treated as prior period items.

For Popular Autoworks Pvt Ltd
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Nofes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

4 Property, plant and equipment '
Particulars Buildings Furniture Electrieal Plantand  Motor car Computer Office Motor Total
# and equipment machinery cquipment equipment cycles and
Gross carrying value 3
Balance at 1 April 2023 21244 75.99 33.62 122.42 43.97 9.02 19.74 0.04 51725
Additions 2,49 0.39 0.10 248 42.71 0.90 0.38 0.32 34.77
Disposals / capitalisations ' 23.27 0.06 . 23.32
Balance at 31 March 2024 214.93 76.38 33.72 124.90 68.41 9.86 20.12 0.36 548.69
Balance at I April 2024 214.93 7638 33.72 124.90 68.41 9.86 20.12 0.36 548.69
Additions 0.22 0.06 3.95 44,66 1.00 1.64 51.54
Disposals / capitalisations 15.04 15.04
Balance at 31 Mar 2025 214.93 76.60 33.78 128.85 98,03 10.86 21.76 0.36 585.19
Accumulated Depreciafion
Balance at 1 April 2023 115.00 3245 18.16 44.06 19.20 8.06 14.60 0.04 251.57
Depreciation for the year 6.00 6.60 223 8.57 6.70 0.66 2.83 - 33.57
Disposals / write off _ _11.69 0.06 _ 11.74
Balance at 31 March 2024 121.00 39.05 2039 52.63 14,21 8,66 17.43 0.04 273.40
Balance at 1 April 2024 121.00 39.05 20,39 52.63 14.21 8.66 17.43 0.4 273.40
Depreciation for the year 6.03 6.49 1.95 8.56 8.80 0.79 1.77 0.04 34.42
Disposals / write off » 377 ] _ 3.77
Balance at 31 Mar 2025 _ 12'7.02 45.54 2234 61.19 19.23 9.45 19.20 0.08 304.04
Net carrying amount
As at 31st Mar 2025 87.91 3L.05 1144 67.66 78.81 1.41 2,57 0.28 281.14
As at 31st Mar 2024 93.93 37.33 13.33 7227 54.20 _1.2‘0 2.69 0.32 275.29
It Include buildings constructed on leaschold land
As at31 Mar2025 | As at31 March 2024
Particulars ' ' )
Gross Net blocle | - Gross Net bloclc .
block block
Buildings ‘ 214,93 87911 21493 93.93
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5 Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Total
soffware

Reconciliation of carrying amount
Gross carrying amount o .
Balance at 1 April 2023 1.82 1.82
Additions 0.02 0.02
Disposals / capitalisations -
Balance at 31 March 2024 1.84 1.84
Balance at 1 April 2024 1.84 1.84
Additions 0.15 0.15
Disposals / capitalisations -
Balance at 31 Mar 2025 . 199 1.99
Amortisation
Balance at | April 2023 1.43 1.43
Amortisation for the year 0.23 0.23
Disposals / write off -
Balance at 31 March 2024 1.66: ' 1.66
Balance at 1 April 2024 ' 1.66 1.66
Amortisation for the year 0.17 0.17
Disposals / write off : -
Balance at 31 Mar 2025 184 1.84

" Net carrying amount
As at 31st Mar 2025 0.15 0.15
As at 31st Mar 2024 0.18 0.18
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Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
6 Other assels '
Non-current
Unsecured, considered gaod
Capital advances 0.64 0.21
Prepayments 16.36 17.89
17.00 i 18.10
Current
Unsecured, cansidered goad .
Prepayments 3.62 3.83
Advanee to staff’ 0.14 0.23
Balance with statuiory / government authorities 249 -
Payment to vendors for supply of goods and services 18.77 42.15 '
: 25,01 46'2=1.
7  Inventorics
(Valued at lower of cost and realisuble value)
New vehicles 38247 170.90
Pre-vwned vehicles 78.36 63.12
Spares and lubricants ’ 30.23 28.08
Goods in transit- spares 11.74 9.95
Accessories 14.81 7.49
. 517.62 279.54
Less: Provision for obsolete inventory (7.30) (0.97)
51032 278.57
8  Trade receivables
Current
Unsecured ,
Considered good 157.49 105.49
Considered doubtful - 0.64 C 032
. 15813 105.81
Alfowances for expected credit loss considered doubtfil {0.64) {0.32)
considered doubtful®
Net trade receivables 15749 105.49
As at 31 Mnr 2025 ]
Mord
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 year Ito2 Zto3 than 3 ‘Total
menths years  years
yewrs
f)Undisputed trade receivables — considered good - 145.16 1181 0,52 - 157.49
ii)Undisputed trade receivables — which have significant -
increase in credit risk
iii)Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired 027 033 0.04 0.64
145.43 1214 0.56 - - 158,13
As at 31 March 2024 .
More
Partlculars Less than 6 6 months - § year lto2 2t3 than 3 Totnl
) menths ) years  years years
{)Undispuled trade receivables — considered good 104.53 0.57 0.39 105.49
{i)Undisputed trade reccivables — which have significant -
increase in credit risk
ii)Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired 0.32 - - 032
' 104.85 0.57 0.39 - - 105.81

For details of Irade receivables from related parties, Refer note 33
‘The Company’s exposurc to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 30 C.

9  Cash and cash equivalents Asat As at
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 0.56 0.09
- in deposit accounts 0.12 0.12
- in cash credit accounts 4.35 19.51
Cash on hand 0.01 0.02
Cash nud cash equivalents in balance sheet : 5.04 19.74
10 Other finnnclnl assets
Noun-current
Unsectired, considered good
Rent and other deposits 24,12 22.84
24.12 22,84
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Rent and other deposits _0.23 -
0.23 -

24,35 22.84
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11

(@

(b)

(c)

(@

Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024 (Audited)
Equity share capital Number of ~ Amount Number of Amount
) shares shares
Authorised
Equity shares of INR 10 each ! 2,80,00,000.00 280.00 2,80,00,000.00 280.00
2,80,00,000.00 280.00 2,80,00,000.00 280.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of INR10 each, fully paid-up 2,51,11,780.00 251.12 2,51,11,780.00 251.12
2,51,11,780.00 251.12 2,51,11,780.00 251.12
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares of INR.10 each fully paid-up .
At the beginning of the period : 2,51,11,780.00 251.12 2,51,11,780.00 251.12
Addition Current period - - - -
At the end of the period 2,51,11,780.00 251.12 2,51,11,780.00 251,12

Rights, preferences and restrietions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. All the equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in
the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from lime to time. The voting
rights of an equily shareholder n a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to share of paid-up equity capital of the
Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have
not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called'up on the shares may lead to the forfeiture of shares. On winding up of the
Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after
the distribution of all preferential amounls in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
Asat As at
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024 (Audited)
Promoter name Number of % Number of %
) shares  holding shares  holding
in the in the
class class
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 2,51,11,779.00 100% 2,51,11,779.00 100.00
Mr. Naveen Philip (nominee of Popular Vehicles and 1.00 0% 1.00 -

Services Limited)

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
Particulars As at . Asat
, Number of % Number of %
‘ shares  holding shares  holding
" in the in the
Equity shares of INR.10 each fully paid-up class class
a) Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 2,51,11,779.00 100% 2,51,11,779.00 100%

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Final Dividend .

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 15th May 2024 had recommended payment of final
dividend of Rs. 0.35 per Equity Share of face value of Rs. 10 each for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 amounting
to Rs. 8.79 million which was approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th July 2024. The same

was paid during the period ended 30th September 2024 and is debited to Retained Earnings. -’W‘
S &

&
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12 Borrowings
Non-current
Secured
Term loans from banks

Term loans from fuancial institutions

Intercorporate Loans
Current

Secured-
Short termi loan from banks

Cumrent maturitics of long-term borrowings
Short term loan from financial institution

Leans from directors

Total borrowings

) Details of securltics, terms and conditions of borrowlngs from banks and flnanclal institutlons

iLenders name

iSccurl!)' ternis

Naturc of borrewings

;Axis Bunk Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

'Kotak Mahindra Bank

g Jb; I 1

;Sm.umd by personal guarantees Naveen Philip, John K
-Pwl nnd l'r:mcls K Paul, di

Short term Joan from banks -

11

“hyp ott vehicles and recei

2 Naveen Philip, John K

of the Company andiS

Q, 1

:Paul and Francis K Paul, di of the Company and
ihypotheeation on vehicles and receivables.

ua)Pcrsunal ‘Guaran , C T WA,

‘Equitable Mortagage of Lund & Buildi

Hypnﬂmcallon on Current asset b) Sccond Chnrgc on
‘primary securitics available for existing facilities

i)foi:ﬁi Maliindra Bank

Stndarum Finance Limited
{South Tndia Bank limited

f§lulc BunkofIndin

: upu nr Veliicle & services
"Limited

{Loans fram directors

ia)Personal G , Con G .
{Equitable Mortagage of Land & Building
{Hypotheeation on Current assct b} Sceond Charge on
:primary seourities available for existing facilities

and Francis K Paul

Loty tenn loan from banks -

) Personal Guarantee of Naveen Philip , John K Paul]

Secured

§

Vehicle loan -Secured

i

Sccured by hypotheeation of vehicles and s;x;r—cs

IShort term toan from banks -

Secured

'égé'ﬁic'ff by(hc fi r;a{.ugc aver stock and receivables
[ ofis

cmalcd out of this fund and

Short term loan from banks -

ll-mm:ls K Paul, John K Paul and Naveen Philip ond
{Corporate guarantee of Kuttukaran Trading Ventures

TAs per the agreed” terms the loans were repayable

!within a period of § ycars, Repayment starts from April
12025,

'As pcr the agreed tenms the loans were n.payahk with

-m a period of one ycar from the balance shect date,

{iniercorp

IDirectorstoan

b Dosrowings from bunks / ﬁnmu:inl institutions carry interest rates from 8.55 % to 9.05 % per‘an»nl‘lm

¢) .The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of sccurity of current asscls. The quarierly retumns or stalements ol current assets filed by the Compuny

with banks and financial institulions arc in agreement with the books of accounts.
d) The Cotnpany has utilised the loans availed for the pirpose it was availed.

Short term lonn from banks -

§h6r{ termt loan from baks -

e

Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
- 2,61
46.87 60.00
. 46.87 62.61
.
175.31 30.32
13.13 719
- 50.54
- 34.50
18844 122,55
235.31 185,16
Asati : Asat.
Tenure 31 Mar 2025; ; 31 March 2024
(Audited): * (Audited)
Tlg0bays 69.68 1549
90 Days “0.30 : 6.16 .
60Days . .
60 months 4.83
. .
12 nionths - 24° . 55.50
Months .
90 d'\ys 9.70 0.00
90 days 95,55 8.68
60 months 60.00 60.00
NA - 34.50
oo 23531 185.16




All tride payables are ‘current’.
The Company's expostre ta currercy and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 30.

Popular Autoworks Private Limited !
Notes to the dnlonc fi fal stat ts (continued) ;
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)
Asat Asat
. 31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
* (Audited) {Audited)
13 Other financial linbilities %
Current £
Accrued salaries und benefits 12,20 8.49
Diues to creditors for expenscs und others 9.15 3.19
21,34 11.68
14 Provisions
Non-current
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuily 3.98 4117
Compensated absences 1.56 1
5.54 5.57
Current
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity - .39
Compensated absences 077 .71
0.77 1.10
]
15 Other labilities
Non-current
Advance from vendors for rebates 1.20 349
1.20 3.49
Other linhilitics
Current
Cantract linbilities 170.22 102.07
Advance from vendors for rebates 235 228
Comuorate Social Responsibility Liability 110 -
Statutory dues payables 11.25 . 298!
T 18492 134.16
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from the for the purchase of vehicles, This will be recognised ns rovenue as and when the Company
micet the performance obligation by delivering the vehicles, Refer Note 17 for more details.
16 Tradepayables
Total outstanding dues of nyicro cnterprises and smafl enterprises 0.30 1.78
Total outstending dues of creditars other than micro enterpriscs and small ealerprises 15.28 22.39
16.08 2417
Trade payable ayeing schedule
ASAUIIMAr2028 e e R e
: g period due dote of payment
Particulars Unbitled duces Lessthan  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Tota)
D e e . ; o Lyeny . years
: YMSME ' - 0.50 - - - 0.80
; ii)Others - 15.00 0.28 - - 1528
| fii)Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - -
! iv)Disputed Dues-Others o o - - - - R
: X 0.28 - - 16.08
As at 31 Mareh 2024 T ..
. Outstanding for fullowing periods from due datc of payment
Particnlars Unbilled dues Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than3 Total
' )MSME - 1.78 - - . - 178
’ ii)Others . . 2193 0.46 - - 2239
; iii)Disputed Dues-MSME ' - . . . . .
 {v)Dispiited Dues-Others - - R . .
; - 0.46 - - 24,17

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Acs™) based on the infurmatlon available with the Company are glven

below:

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of the year

“I'he interest duc on the principal remaining as at the end of the year

The. amount of interest paid under the Act, along with the anounts of the payment made beyond the appainted
day during the year

The amount of interest due und payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) bul without adding the interest specified under the Act,

The amount of interest accrued and semaining unpaid at the end of the year .

The smount of furtler inlerest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untif such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterrise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the Act

0.80
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

17 Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Sale of new veliicles
Sale of spare parts and aceessorics
Sale of pre-owned vehicles

Other operating revenues
Income from schemes and incentives
Finance and insurance commission
Labour Income

Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products and services
Gross revenue .
Less: Discount allowed

(A) Disscggregate of revenue information

Year Ended Year Ended

31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024

{Audited) (Audited)
3,567.41 2.654.87
507.05 396.49
282.55 ) 263.94
4,357.02 3,315.30
154.89 151.29
39.25 32.58
155,07 130.60
4,706.22 3,629.77
4,535.58 3,469.41
2349 23.51
4,512.08 3,445.90

The table below presents disaggregated revenucs from contracts with customers for the below years ended by
offerings and contract type. The Company belicve that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount,
liming and uncertainity of our revenucs and cashflows are effected by industry, market and other cconomic factors,

Particulars

"Revenue by nature
Luxury vehicles(including used cars)
QOthers

Particulars

Fixed price

(B) Contract balances

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
. (Audited) (Audited)

3,849.96 2,918.81
856.25 710.96
4,706.22 3,629.77

Year Ended Year Ended

31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
4,706.22 3,629.77
4,706.22 3,629.77

The following table proviiles information about trade receivables and contract liabilities from contraet with

customers.

Particulars

Trade receivables
Contract liabilities

{C) Transaction price allocated fo vemaining performance obligntions

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
15749 10549
170.22 102,07

The fallowing table includes revenue cxpected to be recognised in the future related fo performance obligations

Particulars

" Within 'lm);ari
More than 3 years
Closing batance

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(@ugihcd) (Audited)
170.22 * 102,07
170.22 102.07




Populnr Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

18 Other income
Fixed deposits with banks 0.01 0.01
National Income from Rent deposits 1.53 1.43
Interest on income-tax refund - 0.18
Gain on sale of property, plant and cquipment (net) 0.94 4.92
. Liabilities no longer required written back 14.42 15.12
( o Other non operating income 9.52 8.16
s ' 2641 29.82
19 Purchases of stoelin-trade ) ’
New vehicles 3,637.40 . 2,547.50
Pre-owned vehicles 282.48 260.24
Spases, lubricants and accessorics 460.21 361.24
4,380.10 ~ 3,168.98
20 Chauge in inventorics of stogh-In-trude '
QOpening inventory ) 268.62 203.76
Closing inventory 498.58 268.62
(229.96) (64.86)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
" (Audited) (Audited)
21 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and allowances ) 128.33 102.83 -
Contribution to provident and other fund 3.68 344
Provison for Gratuily 116 1.09
Staff recruitment ) 0.18 0.21
Staff welfare expense 0.86 5.90
) 140,21 11347
22 Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings 23.77 30.40
Corporate guarantee commission 144 0.15
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 29) 42,69 44,00
Interest on shortfall of advance tax 0.74 0.78
Other borrowing costs 5.45 0.2)
74.09 75.54
23 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 3442 33.57
Amortisation on intangible assels 0.17 0.23
Depreciation on right-of-use asset (rcfer note 29) 40.17 40.27

74.76 7407
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Populnr Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the standalone finnncial statements (continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

24 Other expenses
Rent 0.59 0.49
Advertising and sales promotion 3.98 11.12
Consumables - 0.33 037
Repairs and maintenante:
Plant and machinery 1.64 3.85
Building 253 2.18
Others 9.53 6.81
Povwer, water and fuel 14.26 10.87
Travelling and conveyance 591 5.21
Housckeeping and sceurity and other contract charges 17.43 16.66
Office expenses 3.98 2.40
Printing and stationery 0.81 0.67
Communication 1.88 1.70
Pre-delivery inspection charges 10.73 ‘419
Rates and taxes 4.35 5.07
Transportation charges 2.98 1.20
Bank charges 2.78 2.28
Insurance 4.98 3.82
Legal and professional 3.27 3.06
Bad debts written off 0.18 0.03
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility 1.65 -
Provision for bad & doubtful debts 0.32 0.02
Miscellaneous expenses 0.68 0.72
94.79 82.73
Details of Corporate social responsibility expenditure
(i) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 1.65 -
(i) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 1.65 -
Gy Amount spent during the yearon ;
Construction/ acquisition of asset
On purposes other than above 0.18 R
Unspent amount in relation to:
Ongoing project ' 1.47 -
Other than ongoing project - -
(v) (Shortfall) / Excess at the end of the year (1.47) -
(v) Total of previous years shorifall - -
) Details of related party transactions - .

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the
0v1h) movements in the provision during the period/year should be shown separately
(vil) Reason for shortfall: The unspend amount will be spend in FY 2025-26.
For the year ended 31 March 2024 N.A N.A
(ix) Nature of CSR activities:
a) Payment to Prime minister national relicf fund - - -
b) Skill development - -
¢) Health Care - -
d) Education 0.18 -
¢) Payment to trust. - -

Out of the amount disbursed towards CSR purpose during the year to a charitable trust, which is the implementing
agency, an amount of,Rs. 0,37 million was returned to the Company during April 2025, Accordingly, this is
cxcluded from the amount spent during the year in the above table and included under the Unspent

amount for the year.
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in INR Millions)

Deferred income tax assets after set off (Refer Note below)

As at As at
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
25 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Income Tax Asset 2.18 3.49
MAT Credit Entitlement -
Current income tax liabilities
Net Income assets/(liability) at the end 2.18 3,49
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Deferred income tax assets
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.16 0.09
Provision for employee benefits 2,38 2.64
Deduction under section 35 AD
43B Disallowance - 0.01
IND AS 116 33.26 ) 31.12
WDV of assets 0.77 3.01
Total deferred income tax assets 36.58 36.87
36.58 36.87

Deferred tax nssets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the management has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority. In assessing the realizability of deferved tax assets, the munagement considers the
extent to which, it is probable that the deferred tax asset will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the perieds in which those temporary differences and tax loss

carry-forwards become deductible. Deferred fax asset in respect of unused tax have not been recognized on account of

historical losses and unfavourable caghflow for a prolonged period by the company.

As at As at
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

Income tax expense / ( benefits )

Current tax 56.34 R 46.66

Add : MAT Credit Entitlement - 16.18

Less : Deferred tax 0.49 (4.40)

~ 56.84 58.44
. Asat Asat
Particulars 31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit:
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 198.65 209.65
Income tax cxpense

Current tax ' 56.34 46.66

MAT Credit - 16.18

Deferred tax 0.49 (4.40)
Profit after tax 141.81 142,41
Income tax rates 25.2% 27.8%
Tncome Tax expense (Including previous year) 52.41 58.33
Admissible Expenses (11.42) (13.13)
Inadmissible Expenses - 10.18 10.66
Ind AS Adjustments 5.20 , 7.00
80JJAA: additional Employce cost (0.03) -
Income tax expense recognised in profif or loss 634 62.84
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in INR Millions)

25 Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities) (continued)

Movement in temporary differences

Charge/ Charge/
(eredit) in (credit) in

.. : ’ As at ) As at
Movement during the year ended 31 Mar 2025 1 April 2024 the statement other |31 Mar 2025
of profit and | compreliensi
) loss ve income
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.09 0.07 0.16
Provision for cmployec benefits 2.64 (0.05) (0.21) 2.38
43B Disallowance 0.01 (0.01) -
Other timing differences - -
Lease liabilities,impact on account of Ind AS 116 3112 2.14 33.26
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under Incone 3.01 (2.24) 0.77
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) at the end.of the year 36.87 (0.09) (0.21) 36.57
Charge/ Charge/
(eredity in | (credit) in
. Asat Asat
Movement during the year ended 31 Mar 2024 1 April 2023 {he statement other | 31 Mar 2024
of profit and | comprehensi
loss ve income
Allowance for cxpeeted credit loss 0.08 0.01 - 0.09
Provision for employee benefits 2.39 0.28 (0.03) 2.64
43B Disallowance - 0.01 - 0.01
Other timing differences 0.10 (0.10) - -
Lease Habilities,impact on account of Ind AS 116 2427 6.85 - 31.12
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under Income 5.60 (2.59) - 3.01
Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under Cdmpanics Act, 2013
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) at the end of the year 32.44 4.46 (0.03) 36,87
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Notes to the standalgne financial statements (continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

26

27

28

Earnings per share
A. Basic enrnings per share

The calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of cquity
shares outstanding for the purpose of basic carnings per share caleulations are as follows:

i) Net profit attributable to equity share liolders

Particulars ) Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Net profit for the year, attributable to the cquity shure holders 14115 151,14
(A)
ii) Weighted average number of cequity shares (basic and diluted)#
Particulars ) Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
{Audited) (Audited)
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year (Refer 2,51,11,780 2,51,11,780
note 11)
Weighted average number of sharcs issued during the year - -
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 cach 2,51,11,780 2,51,11,780
outstanding during the period/ycar ( B)
Tamings per share, basic and diluted (A/B) 5.62 6.02
Auditors’ remuneration (net of goods and scrvice tax)
Particulars ) Yeur Ended Yenr Ended
31 Mar2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Statutory audit 0.48 0.23
Tax Audit 0.04 0.04
Other Malters . 0.02 0.0]
0.54 0.28

Segment veporting

The Company is cngaged in the business of purchase and sale of vehicles and related services. The
catire operations arc organiscd and managed as onc organisational unit with same se1 of risk and
retums, hence the same has been considercd as reporling o single primary scgment, The Company
renders services in India only and does not have any operalions in cconomic cnviromments with
different risk and returns, licnce it is considered operating a single geographic segment, Accordingly,

no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements
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29
A

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan ¢

‘The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified pereentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employces towards provident fund and other
funds which arc defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specificd contributions, The contributions are charged o the
statement of profit and loss as they accrue,

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates certain post-cmployment defined benefit plan which is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method. The Company acerues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 (*Gratuity Act’).

The Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast five years of continuous service, to receive one-half month’s salary for each year of completed
service (service of six months or above is rounded off to one year) at the time of retirenient/ exit, restricted to a sum of INR 2.00 miliion.

Bascd on an aetuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table scts out the status of the benefit plan and the mnounts recognised i the Company's
dolone financial sta {s as at balance sheet date:
Reconcillution of the projected defined benefil obligation
7

Particulars Asut As nt
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
. (Audited) (Audited)
Defined benefit liability C 747 5.75
Plan assets 3.50 1.1y
Net defined benefit Hability/ (asset) 3.98 4,56
Liability for compensated absences 233 2,11
"Total employee benefit liability . 6.31 6.67
Non-current defined benefit assct - -
Non-current defined benefit liability 5.54 5.57
Current defined benefit liability ' 0.77 1.1

Recancitiation of net defined benefit (asscts)/ ability
§) Reconciliation of present values of defined benefit abligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benfit (assct)/ finbility and its components:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 5.75 513
Curent service cost 1.16 1.09
Past service Cost
Interest cost 0.35 0.33
Benefits (Received) (0.75) (0.65)
Liabilities settied ! - _ (0.14)

Re-nteasurements .
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehiensive income

[EP—

- changes in financial assumptions 0.16 (0.17)
- changes in expericnce over the past period 0.80 0.17
Defined benefil abligation as at the end of the year 747 5.75

ii) Reconciliation of present value of plan assels

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
» (Audited) {Audited)
Plan asscts at the beginning of the yenr ' 1.19 1.71
Contributions paid into the plan 2.89 0.12
Benefits (Received) (0.75) 0.65)
Inierest income : 0.06 0.11
Re-measurenents
Retum on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined finbility/(assct) 0.09 (0.10)
Balance at the end of the year 3.50 1.19
Net defined benefit Hability/ (assct) 3.98 4.55

Expenses recognised in the standalone stntement of profit and loss

(i) Exy recognised in the dall falt t of profit and loss
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 ivlarch 2024
' {Audited) {Audited)
Current service.cost 1.16 1.09
Past service cost - -
Net intcrest on net defined linbility 0.29 0.21

Net gratuity cost 145 1.31
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29 Employee benefits (continued)
i) Reconcilintion of present value of plan ussels

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
( H , : 31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
' (Audited) (Audited)
Plan assets at the beginning of the year : 1.19 1.71
Countributions paid into the plan : 2.89 0.12
Benefits paid (0.75) (0.65)
Interest income 0.06 0.11
Re-measurements
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined liability/(asset) 0.09 (0.10)
- return on plan asset
Balance af the end of the year 3.49 119
Net defined benefit linbility . 3.98 4.55
(iii) Remeasur fs recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Aundited)
Actusial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 0.96 0.00
Return on plan asset excluding inferest income (0.09) 0.10
Net gratuity (gain)/ cost 0.86 0.10

L Plan Asset
Plan asset comprises of the following:

Particulars ) Asnt As at
31 Mar2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

Funds managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 3.50 1.19

‘The Company makes annual contribution te the Life Insurance Corporation of India ( 'LIC) of an amount advised by LIC. The Company was not
informed by LIC of the investments made by them or the break up of the plan assets into various type of investments.

T Defined Benefit Obligaiion
(i) Actuarinl Assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at {he reporting date (expressed as weighted average):

Particulars Asat Asat
31 Max 2025 31 March 2024

(Audited) {Audited)

Discount rate 6.50% 7.15%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
. 29% p.a withdrawal 29% p.a
Adrition rate ratc at all ages  withdrawal rate at
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligaiton 3.34 years 3.32“yenrs

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost as st out below;
Assumplions regarding future mortality expericnce are set in accordance with the standard table - TALM 2012-14. The Company assesses these

assumptions with its projected long-term plans of grow{h and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government
sceurities yicld,

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plans.

(i) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes af the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the-defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 Muarch 2024

Increase Decrease Incrense Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) -1.65% 1.70% -1.63% 1.69%
Future satary growth (0.5% movement) . 1.70% -1.66% 1.70% " .1.66%

Although the analysis docs not take account of the full distribution of the cash flows cxpected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of
the sensitivity of' the assumption shown,
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30 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management

A Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of finaucial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair valuic hicrarchy.
As at 31 Mar 2025

I3 {Particulars Note Carrying amount ; Fair value
kS L Financial Other Total Levell TLevel2 Level3  Total
assets at  Mandatori financial  carrying
amortised ly at liabilities value
cost FVTPL nt
amortised

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 4 5.04 5.04 -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 31 -
‘Trade rcceivables 4 157.49 157.49 -
Olthier financial assels ! 5 3.67 3.67 -
Financial asset measured at fair value
Rent Deposit (included in Other Financial Assels) 20.46 20.46 2046 2046
Total 166.19 20.46 - 186.65 - - 2046 20.46
Tinancial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 1 16.08 16.08 - - - -
Borrowings 0 23531 235.31 - - - -
Lease liabilities 0 490.06 490.06 - - - -
Other finunciul linbilities 0 21,34 21.34 - . - - -
Total ) - - 762.80 762.80 - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Note Carrying amount Fair vajue

Tinancial Mandatori  Other Total Level1 Level2 Leveld  Total

assets at lyat financinl  cmrying

amortised FVTPL  liabilities value
Financial nssets not mensured at fair value
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 9 19.74 - - 19.74 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 10 - - -
Trade receivables 8 105.49 - - 105.49 - . - -
Other financial assels . 10 1.07 - - 1.07 - - - -
Financial asset measured at fair value
Rent Deposit (included in Other Financial Assets) ) - 21,77 - 21.77 - 2177 2.7
Total 126.30 21.77 - 148.07 - - 2877 2177
Finaneial Jiabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 16 - - 24.17 24.17 - - - -
Borrowings 12 - - 185.16 185.16 - - - -
Lease liabilities 31 - - 508.03 508.03 - - - -
Other financial liabilitics i5 - - 11.68 11.68 - - - -
Total . - - 729.04 729.04 - - . -

Note 1:The Company has not.disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, wrade payables etc., because their
carrying amounts arc a reasonable approximation of fair value.

* Excludes investments in associates and subsidiaries measured at cost.

Mensurement of fair values

The fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. The discount rates used is bascd on management cstimates.

Level 1 fair values .

Tnvestment in equity shares that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the stock exchanges. It is been valued using the closing price as at the reporting
period on the stock exchanges.

Level 2 fair values

Investment in mutug] funds- is unquoted price and are observable for the assct or liability, either directly(i.c., as prices)or indirectly (i.c..derived from prices)

Level 3 fair values

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The quantitative sensitivity analysis of Jevel 3 fair value of financial instrument as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 has not been disclosed as it is not material to
the Company.
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30

ii)

Tinancial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)

Measurement of fair values

‘Fhe following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair valucs:

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV™) as slated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the
published statements as at balance shect date, NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issuc further units of mutual fund and the price at
which issuers will redeem.such units from the investors

I3

Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Risk management framework !

The Company’s board of directors (‘the Board') has averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management {ramework.
They oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk management policies a1d procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks foced by the Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit, Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc revicws of risk management controls and procedures, the reslts of which are reported to the Board.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial foss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mcet its coutractual obligations,
and arises principally from company's receivables fronr customers, loans and invesiment in mutual funds.

The Company is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparties defaulting on their obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit
risk primarily relates to investments, accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents, The Company monitors and limits its exposure o credit
risk on a continuous basis. To manage this the Company periodically reviews the financial reliability of its customers, taking into account the
financial condition, current cconomic trends and analysis of historical bad debis and ageing of accounts reccivables. The carrying amount of
financial assets represents maximum credit risk exposure.

The Company establishes an altowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expecled losses in respect of trade and other receivables based
on the past and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporling date is primarily from trade receivables
amounting to Rs. 158.13 million (31 March 2024: Rs 105.81 million).

The Company has no significant customer whose carrying value exceeds 10% of the revenue from operations. There is no significant concentration
of credit risk.

]
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade reccivables during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit loss As at| As at

31 Mar 2025| 31 March 2024

(Audited) (Audited)
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.32 0.30
Provision created during the year 0.32 0.02
Balance at the end of the year 0.64 0.32

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credil rating agencies.
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iif) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its fiabilities when duc, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company's reputation.

‘* ) The table below provides details rogarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilitics as of 31 Mar 2025:

Particulars Payable within  More than 1 Total
1 year year

Trade payables 16.08 - 16.08

Borrowings 188.44 46.87 235.31

Leasc liabilitics , 22.68 467.39 490.06

Other financial liabilities 21.34 - 21.34

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilitics as of 31 March 2024

Particulars Payable within  More than 1 Total
1 year year

Trade payables 24.17 - 24.17

Borrowings 122.55 62.61 185.16

Lease liabilities 18.01 490.02 508.03

Other financial liabilitics 11.68 - 11.68

iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

Toreign currency risk

The Company is cxposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which transactions are denominated and
{he functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is INR and the Company does not have any material foreign
currency transactions during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 .

]
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate
risk. The interest rate on the Company's financial instruments is based on market rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an
ongoing basis.

(2) Interest rate yisk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year arc as follows:

—

LS

Financial liabilitics (bank borrowings) Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 31 Mareh 2024
(Auditetl) (Audited)
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturitics 60.00 69.8
Sensitivity
Impact on profit or {loss)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
1% incrense in variable rate (0.60) {0.70)
1% decrease in variable rate 0.60 0.70
\ Impact on equity, net of tax
Particulars As nt Asat
31 Mar 2025f 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
1% increase in variable rate (0.45) (0.52)
1% decrease in variable rate 0.45 0.52

.
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Notes to the standnlene fi Ial st ts (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)
31 Lesuses '

‘The Company has taken showrooms and service cenlres on lease from various putics from where business
operations are performed.-The leases typically run for a period of 1 year - 30 years. Lease payments are

rencgotiated nearing the expiry 10 reflect market rentals.

(i) Lease liabilities

Following arc the chunges in the Iease Jinbilities for the period ended 31 March 2025 and 31 Mar 2024:

i Asat Asat

particutars 31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

Balance us at 1 April 508.03 521.73
Additions N
Finance cost nccrued during the period 42,69 44.00
Derecognition of lease liability during the period
Payment of lease liabilitics (60.66) (57.70)
Balance as at 490,06 508.03
Non-current lease linbilitics v 467.39 490.02
Current lease liabilities 22.68 18.01

In respect of immovable property taken under lease, the lease ay are duly

() Maturity analysis — contractual undisconnted cash flows

d in favour of the lessce.

Particulars ’ Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
{Audited) (Audited)
Less than one year 63.64 6070
One to five years 287.59 274.09
More than five years 388.69 465.84
Total undiscounted lease linbilities 739,93 800,63

(i¥i) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets reluted to leased propertics that do not meet the definition of investment praperty are presented

as property, plant and equipment

32 Cnpital Management

Particulars Asat Asnt '
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Balance at 1 April 396.15 434.50
Depreciation for the year (38.24) {38.35)
Balance as at 357.91 396.15
(iv) A recognised in sint t of prafit or loss
Particulars
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Interest on lease liabilitics 42.69 44.00
Depreciation on ripht-of-use assets 40.17 40.27
() A recagnlsed in stat of cash flows
Particulars
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar2025 31 March 2024
{Audited) {Audited)
Total cash outflow for leases (60.66) (57.70)

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business, Management monitors capilal an the basis of relum on capilal
employed as well as the debt to total equity ratie. For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is
long-tesm and short-term barrowings. Total cquity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity reserves. .

Asnt As at

31 Mnr 2025 31 March 2024

(Audited) {Audited)
Total equity attributable to the equity sharcholders of the Campany (A) 461.94 329.57
Non -current borrewings 46.87 62.61
Current borrowings 188.44 122.55
Totul borrowings 23531 185,16
Less: cash and cash equivalents 5.04 19.74
Adjusted net debt (B) 230.27 16542
Adjusted net debt to total equity ratio (BIA) 0.50 0.50
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Populitr Autoworls Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financinl statentents (continued)
(All amonnts in Indian Rupces million)

33

Related parties

1. Names of related parties and description of relationship:

(a) Holding Company Popular Vehicles and Services Limiled

(b) Fellow Subsidiary Papular Megs Motors India Private Limited '

Vision Motors Private Limited
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Kultukaran Cars Privatc Limited(Formerly known as Prabal mnotors Private Ltd)
Prabal Motors Private Limited(Formerly Known as Popular Kuttukaran Cars Pyt Ltd)

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited
(c) Other related partics with whom the Company had transactions during the period

- Key management personnel and their relatives (KMP) Mr. Naveen Philip, Director

Mr. Francis K Paul, Director

Mr, John K Paul, Dircctor

M. Jyothish Madhavanpillai, Dircetor

Ms.Malini Eapen,Additional Dircctor (Date of Apt . 23.09.24)
Mr.Thomas A Karedan,Additional Director (Date of Apt . 14.03.25)
Mr.A Suresh Kumar,CEO

Mr.John Verghese,CFO

Mr.Varun Thazhathu Veedu,CS

Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development, India
Keracon Equipment Private Limited
Kutikoran Trading Ventures

- Entitics in which KMP has significant influcnce

I1. Reluted parly transuclions:
{n) The Company has ¢ntered into the following transactions with related partics:

Particulars
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)
Revenue from operations
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited - 6.55
Interest Expense )
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 5.16 2.70
Other support received
Popular Vchicles and Services Limited 0.53 1.04
Kutwkaran Cars Private Limited 0.01 0.14
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited 0.46 0.28
Guarantee comnission Paid '
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 1.44 0.15
Income from rent
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 0.01 0.05
Intercorporate Jonn Repayment
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited - 38.70
Intercorporate Josn Recelved
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited - 60.00
Purchase of goods
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited 2.34
Expense met by the Company 4
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited ’ 3.97 3.30
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 0.01
Vision Motors Pet Ltd - 0.10
Expense met on behalf of the Company
Popular Mega Motors {India) Private Limited 2.26
Remuneration
M. Surcsh Kumar, CEO 6.51 5.59

682 025
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Popular Autoworls Private Limited .
Nofes to the standalone finnncial statements (continued) .
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

34

35

UL Bulauce receivable fron/ (payable) to related pariies as at the bnlan_c"u shegl_ date:

Particulars As at Asat

31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

Loans from related partics
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (60.00) . (60.00)
Trade Payables
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited : -
Popular Mega Motars (India) Private Limited
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Guarantee Commission Payable '
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (0.31) 0.02)
Other Receivables

Kultukaran Cars Private Limited
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 0.02 0.35
Papular Awto Dealers Private Limited 0.04 0.36
Long Term Borrowings
John K Paul - (16.95)

Trancis K Paul - (17.55)

All the related party transactions cnlered during the period were in ordinary coursc of business and arc on arm's lenglh basis.

No funds have been advanced or loancd or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 1o
or in any otlier person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in oiher persons or entitics identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ullimale Bencficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or.like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.

The Company has net received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ics) (“Funding Party™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd by or on behall of the Funding Party
(“Ullimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaranlee, sceurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.
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Inr Autoworks Private Limited

Notes to the standalone finnncial statements (continued)

(Alla

36

mounts in Indian Rupees million)

Qo

Ralios as per the dule I requir

1) Current Ratlo = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars Asal Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
(Audited)
Current assels 698.09 450.01
Current linbifities 434,23 311.67
Ratio 1.61 144
2% Change from previous year 11.34%
1) Debt Equity ratio = Total deht divided by Tatal equity where tola) debt refers to sum of current & non current Dorrowings
Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
{Audited)
Current borrowings® (a) 188.44 122.55
Non current borrowings {b] 46.87 62.61
Total debt ' 23538 185,16
‘Total equity 461,94 3290.57
Ratio 0.51 0,56
%% Change from previous year 9.33%
*Short Term Borrowings includes Current Maturitics of Non Current Bomowings
) Debt Service Coverage Rautlo = Earnings available to service debt divided by total Interest and horrowings
Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
(Audited)|
Profit before tax 198.65 209.65
Finance cost . 74.09 75.54
Depreeiation and amortisution 7476 74.07
Earnings available to service debt 347.50 359,26
Interest cost 23717 30.40
Non-current borrowings 46.87 62.61
Current borrowings 183.44 122,55
Debt service coverage ratio 134 147
% Change from previous year end -19.52%
d) Return on Equity/Return on Investinent = Net profif alter tax divided by Equity
Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 Mureh 2024
{Audited)
Net profit after tax L] 151.24
Tolal equity 461.94 329.57
Ratlo ' 30.70% 45.88%
-33.09%

% Change from previous year

Reason for change more than 25%:
The ROT has reduced duc to decrease in Net Profit along with increase in retained camings




Popular Autoworks Private Limited
Noftes to the dalone fi jal st ts (cantinued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

36 Rutios as per the Schedule I requirements * (continued)

¢) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Particulars Asa Asat
R 31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
s ' (Audited)
§ Net Prafit afler fax 141.8% 15121
o Sales 4,706.22 362977
Ratlo 3.01% $17%
% Change from previous year -27.67%
Renson for change niore thun 25%:
Fhe Net profit has reduced due to decrease in gross margin % from manufacturer,
f) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cosl of materials consumed divided by closing inventory
Particulars As all Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 3§ March 2024
{Audited)
Purchase of stock in trade [} 4,380.10 3,168.98
Changes in inventories of stock-in-frade [b] (229.96) (G4.56)
Cost of material consumed {u}+[b] 4,150.13 3,104.42
Closing inventory ) 51032 278,57
Ratlo 8.13 11.14
% Change from previous year -27.02%
Reason for change more thun 25%:
‘The reduction in the Inventory tumover ratio due to increase in the purchase and Inventury valucs.
g) Net enpital Turnover Ratio = Tatal income divided by Net Working caplial whereas net working capital= cmrrent assets ~ current liahilities
Particulars Asat As at]
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
(Audited)
Revenue from operations and other income 4,732,63 3,659.59
Current assct {a} 698.09 450.01
Current Hability (Net) * [b) 245.79 189.12
Net working captial {a}-[b] 452.29 260.89
Ratio 10.46 14,03
% Change Trom previous year -2541%
Reason for change more than 25%:
‘The reduction in the net capital turnover ratio due fo inerease in fotal revenue of the company
h) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio = Reventte firom operations divided by trade receivables
Particulars Asal Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
{Audited)
Revenue from operations 4,706,22 3,629.77
Trade reccivable 15749 105.49
‘Trade receivable turnover ratio 29.88 34,41
% Change from previous year end -13.15%
1) Return on Capital cmployed = Enrniugs before Interest and taxes(EBIT) divided by capital employed (Total equity + Borrowings)
Partleulars - Asat Asat
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
) (Audited)
Profit before tnx 198.65 200.65
Finance cost 74.09 75.54
LEnrnings before interest and tax 272,74 285.19
Total cquity[a] 461.94 32057
Total borrowings{b] 23531 185.16
Cupital employed [a]+]b] 697,24 51473
Ratio ¢ 0.39 0.55
% Cliango from previous year -29.40% :
Reason for change move than 25%:
The ROCE ratio reduced due to increase in the working capital borrowings & retained carning
J} Trade Payable Turnover Rativ = Cost of goods sold divided by closing trade payables
Particulars Asat As at
31 Mar 2025 (Audited) 31 March 2024
(Audited)
Cost of goods sold 4,150.13 3,104.12
Trade payable 16.08 2117
‘Tradle payable turnover ratio 258.04 128.43
% Change from previous year end 100.92%

Reason for change mare than 25%:
The trade payable ratio incrcased duc ta seitlement of trade payables & increuse in the COGS.
* Only variances above 25% has been anulysed by the management
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Popular Autoworks Private Limited ! . ,
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)
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For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

Chartered Accountants

PMLVEERAMANI =
Partner . Francis I Paul
M. No. 23933, FR. No. 002785S " Dircetor Dircetor
1 £ Wy’ - DIN: 00018827 DIN:00018825
: . Place: Kochi Place: Kochi
Date: Date:

Additional regulatory information pursuant to the requirement in Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013

i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

ii) The Company doces not have any transactions with companies struck off.

iii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment ,right-of-use assets or intangible assets or both during the
current or previous year.

iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been swrendercd
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

vi) None of the entities in The Company have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

vii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companices Act, 2013, i

viii) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year. :

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever nccessary to conform to current period presentation,
As per the report on even date  for and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

Popular Autoworks Private Limited

CIN : U34100KL2009PTC024318
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A Suresh Kumar Varun TV
~ Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
Place: Kochi " Place: Bangalore Place: Kochi

Date: “ Date: Date:
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